
MEETING AGENDA

Please silence all electronic devices as a courtesy to those in attendance.  Thank you.

Items denoted with a       are Redevelopment Successor Agency items and will be acted upon by the 
Redevelopment Successor Agency Board.

7:30 p.m. REGULAR SESSION

a. CALL TO ORDER
b. INVOCATION
c. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
d. ROLL CALL
f. AGENDA APPROVAL, ADDITIONS, AND/OR DELETIONS

PUBLIC COMMENT

Public comment will be in accordance with the attached policy. This time is reserved for members of the audience to address 
the City Council on items of interest that are not on the Agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Council.  It is 
recommended that speakers limit their comments to three (3) minutes each and it is requested that no comments be made during this
period on items on the Agenda. The Council is prohibited by law from taking any action on matters discussed that are not on the 
Agenda. Prior to addressing the Council, any handouts for Council will be provided to the City Clerk for distribution to the Council and 
appropriate staff. The public will have an opportunity to comment on items on the agenda once the item has been called and the 
Mayor opens the item to the public.

CEREMONIAL / PRESENTATION – Section 1

No Ceremonies or Presentations. 

DEPARTMENT AND CITY MANAGER REPORTS – Section 2

2-1 Department & City Manager Reports

CONSENT CALENDAR – Section 3
Items considered routine in nature are placed on the Consent Calendar.  They will all be considered and voted upon in one vote as 

one item unless a Council member or member of the public requests individual consideration.

3-1 Approval – Minutes – Regular Meeting – April 5, 2022
3-2 Approval – Minutes – Special Meeting – April 5, 2022
3-3 Approval – Second Reading – Ordinance 2022-02 – Adopting a Military Equipment Use 

Policy Pursuant to Assembly Bill 481
3-4 Approval – Second Reading – Ordnance 2022-03 and 2022-04 – Prezoning No. 2021-

03, and Planning Unit Development No. 2021-01 for Tract 935

LEMOORE
CALIFORNIA

JOINT LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL
LEMOORE REDEVELOPMENT 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY MEETING
COUNCIL CHAMBER

429 C STREET
April 19, 2022



3-5 Approval – Budget Amendment and Agreement between the County of Kings and the 
City of Lemoore to Provide a Sub Award for FY 2019 State Homeland Security Grant 
Programs Funding

3-6 Approval – Subdivision Agreement and Final Map – Tract 820 – Energy Homes, Inc. dba 
G.J Gardner Homes

3-7 Approval – Budget Amendment – Purchase of APNs: 024-080-074 (8.60 Acres) and 
APN 024-080-076 (10.55 Acres)

3-8 Approval – Notice of Completion – CIP 5313 – Bush Street Sewer Repair Project
3-9 Approval – Change Order for AdEdge for Electrical Work on City Wells
3-10 Approval – Notice of Completion – CIP 5019 – 2021 Annual Road Maintenance Project

PUBLIC HEARINGS – Section 4
Report, discussion and/or other Council action will be taken.

No Public Hearings.

NEW BUSINESS – Section 5
Report, discussion and/or other Council action will be taken.

5-1 Report and Recommendation – ARPA Ad Hoc Committee Recommendation to City 
Council (Olson)

BRIEF CITY COUNCIL REPORTS AND REQUESTS – Section 6

6-1 City Council Reports / Requests

ADJOURNMENT

Upcoming Council Meetings

City Council Regular Meeting, Tuesday, May 3, 2022
City Council Regular Meeting, Tuesday, May 17, 2022

Agendas for all City Council meetings are posted at least 72 hours prior to the meeting at the Council Chamber, 429 C Street and 
the Cinnamon Municipal Complex, 711 W. Cinnamon Drive. Written communications from the public for the agenda must be 
received by the City Clerk’s Office no less than seven (7) days prior to the meeting date.  The City of Lemoore complies with the 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA of 1990). The Council Chamber is accessible to the physically disabled. Should you need
special assistance, please call (559) 924-6744, at least 4 business days prior to the meeting.

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION
I, Marisa Avalos, City Clerk for the City of Lemoore, declare under penalty of perjury that I posted the 
above Regular City Council Agenda for the meeting of April 19, 2022 at Council Chamber, 429 C Street
and Cinnamon Municipal Complex, 711 W. Cinnamon Drive, Lemoore, CA on April 15, 2022.

//s//
Marisa Avalos, City Clerk



CITY OF LEMOORE
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

April 19, 2022 @ 7:30 p.m.

All upcoming regular and special City Council meetings will be open to members of the public 
on a first come, first served basis and via Zoom. The meeting may be viewed through the 
following options: 

Join Zoom Meeting
Please click the link below to join the webinar:
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81844469005?pwd=dEZ3cnVDYitNZjVFdm0rbnhjNDU5Zz09
Meeting ID: 818 4446 9005
Passcode: 807452
Phone: +1 669 900 6833

The City will also provide links to streaming options on the City’s website and on its Facebook 
page.  

If you wish to make a general public comment or public comment on a particular item on the 
agenda, participants may do so via Zoom during the meeting or attend in person.
 



1

Item 3-1
April 5, 2022 Minutes

Lemoore City Council Meeting
Study Session Meeting

CALL TO ORDER:
At 6:30 p.m., the meeting was called to order.

ROLL CALL: Mayor: LYONS
Mayor Pro Tem: MATTHEWS
Council Members: CHANEY, GORNICK, ORTH

City Staff and contract employees present: City Manager Olson; Assistant City Manager Speer;
City Attorney Lerner; Police Chief Kendall; Management Analyst Baley; City Planner Brandt; City
Clerk Avalos.

STUDY SESSION

SS-1 Update on Preparation of Lemoore Municipal Services Review for LAFCO of Kings County 
(Brandt)

City Planner Steve Brandt provided an update on the preparation of Lemoore Municipal Services 
Review (MSR) for LAFCO of Kings County which included:

The City’s efforts to expand Lemoore’s Primary Sphere of Influence (SOI).
The SOI is a boundary drawn in the unincorporated area around the City that identifies 
where the City is allowed to annex territory into the City limits.

o Also identifies the areas where the City has a particular interest in coordination 
land uses with Kings County.

o Council approved a request by People’s Properties, LLC to initiate annexation 
proceedings on a property located on the southeast corner of 19th Avenue and 
Idaho Avenue.

The MSR needs to be accepted by LAFCO’s Commission.
Maps showing both the existing SOI and the City’s anticipated proposed SOI were 
provided in the draft MSR document.

Consensus was received by Council to move the sphere of influence south to Jackson Avenue.

At 6:48 p.m., Council adjourned.



2

April 5, 2022 Minutes
Lemoore City Council

Regular Meeting

CALL TO ORDER:
At 7:30 p.m., the meeting was called to order.

ROLL CALL: Mayor: LYONS
Mayor Pro Tem: MATTHEWS
Council Members: CHANEY, GORNICK, ORTH

City Staff and contract employees present: City Manager Olson; Assistant City Manager Speer;
City Attorney Lerner; Police Chief Kendall; Public Works Director Rivera; Management Analyst 
Baley; Management Analyst Reeder; City Planner Brandt; City Clerk Avalos.

AGENDA APPROVAL, ADDITIONS, AND/OR DELETIONS

No agenda approvals, additions or deletions.
.

PUBLIC COMMENT

Pamela Williams stated that there are not many restaurants in Lemoore to have a decent meal.

CEREMONIAL / PRESENTATION – Section 1

1-1 Distribution of Donations (Olson)

City Manager Olson introduced Dan Chavez with People’s Farming. Dan Chavez distributed 
donation checks to organizations within the community which included: Lemoore High School 
Sober Grad, Lemoore Little League, and Lemoore Christian Aid. 

1-2 Proclamation Recognizing Dr. Ernie Smith (Olson)

Mayor Lyons presented a proclamation to Dr. Ernie Smith for 12 years of service to the 
Lemoore Parks and Recreation Department’s Witness for Fitness Program.

DEPARTMENT AND CITY MANAGER REPORTS – Section 2

Police Chief Kendall stated the department will be assisting with the Lemoore High School Senior 
interviews. This Thursday and Friday, the department will be participating in the “Every 15 
Minutes” event. Starting a new partnership with West Hills with their AOJ program. Will begin 
bringing some courses down to the Police Department to provide tours and simulator. April 22, 
2022 at 10:00 a.m. at the Civic Auditorium will be the Officer Diaz overpass dedication.

Public Works Director Rivera provided updates on current Public Works projects. Overlay was 
completed at Laurel Ln. and Farallen Ct. There is a detour on Hanford-Armona Road currently. 
Tank #7 is currently being painted. The tank will be filled with water within the next couple of 
weeks. The City has been noticed to install ADA ramps on Fern to Olive. An informal bid will be 
held to get the project started. 

City Manager Olson stated that he has been notified that two or three businesses will be closing 
in downtown due to lack of foot traffic. He is asking residents to take a stroll downtown and check 
out businesses. 



3

CONSENT CALENDAR – Section 3

3-1 Approval – Minutes – Regular Meeting – March 15, 2022
3-2 Approval – Notice of Completion – CIP 5712A – Site Improvements for the Lemoore 

Public Safety Dispatch Center
3-3 Approval – Contract Award Extension – Audit Services
3-4 Approval – Resolution 2022-13 – To Review and Renew the Declaration of a Local 

Emergency, and the Related Declarations and Orders Therein.

Item 3-2 was pulled for separate consideration.

Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Matthews, seconded by Council Member Orth, to approve the Consent 
Calendar, except Item 3-2. 

Ayes: Matthews, Orth, Gornick, Chaney, Lyons

3-2 Approval – Notice of Completion – CIP 5712A – Site Improvements for the Lemoore 
Public Safety Dispatch Center

Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Matthews, seconded by Council Member Gornick, to approve the 
Notice of Completion for CIP 5712A, Site improvements for the Lemoore Public Safety Dispatch 
Center.

Ayes: Matthews, Gornick, Orth, Chaney, Lyons

PUBLIC HEARINGS – Section 4

4-1 Public Hearing – Introduction and First Reading – Ordinance 2022-02 – Adopting a Military 
Equipment Use Policy Pursuant to Assembly Bill 481 (Kendall)

Public Hearing opened: 8:01 p.m.

Spoke: Tom Reed

Public Hearing closed: 8:02 p.m.

Motion by Council Member Orth, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Matthews, to introduce and waive 
the first reading of Ordinance 2022-02, adopting a Military Equipment Use Policy Pursuant to 
Assembly Bill 481.

Ayes: Orth, Matthews, Gornick, Chaney, Lyons

4-2 Public Hearing – Annexation No. 2021-03, Prezoning No. 2021-03, Tentative Subdivision 
Map Tract 935, Planning Unit Development No. 2021-01 (Brandt)

Public Hearing opened: 8:26 p.m.

Spoke: Jeff Callaway, Lennar

Public Hearing closed: 8:32 p.m.



4

Motion by Council Member Orth, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Matthews, to adopt Resolution 
2022-15, approving the Mitigated Negative Declaration and initiating Annexation No, 2021-03 and 
2022-16, approving Tentative Subdivision Map Tract 935, and introduce and waive the first 
readings of Ordinances 2022-03 and 2022-04.

Ayes: Orth, Matthews, Chaney, Lyons
Noes: Gornick

NEW BUSINESS – Section 5

5-1 Report and Recommendation – Audit Report for Year Ended June 30, 2021 (Speer)

Motion by Council Member Gornick, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Matthews, to receive and file 
the Audit Report for Year Ended June 30, 2021.

Ayes: Gornick, Matthews, Orth, Chaney, Lyons

BRIEF CITY COUNCIL REPORTS AND REQUESTS – Section 6

6-1 City Council Reports / Requests

Mayor Pro Tem Matthews stated that she participated on a refuse ride along. It was interesting. 
She was impressed how well they work together and gave kudos to the division. She reminded 
the public keep cans out of the gutters, spaced three feet apart, do not overfill cans, and ensure 
that you are putting appropriate items in each can. It makes their job easier. KWRA approved a 
recycles software that will assist with reporting. She attended a tour of the Lisa Project with the 
DA’s office. It was eye opening. Gave a shout out to Parks and Recreation for the Pop Up Vendor 
event. It had a great turnout. She also attended the West Hills College Golden Arena Pantry 
ribbon cutting. She participated in the strategic planning interview with the facilitator and is excited 
for the session. She also attended a Cal Cities webinar regarding potential upcoming bills.

Council Member Chaney expressed his appreciation to City workers in every department. He 
requested the duties and responsibilities of the Community Services Officer. 

Council Member Gornick thanked City Manager Olson for recognizing Dr. Ernie Smith. He 
thanked People’s Farming for their contributions to the City. He discussed ARPA funding 
He would like to discuss at the housing laws at the retreat. There is a lot going on in Kings County 
in regards to water. 

Council Member Orth thanked People’s Farming for distributing the donations. He attended the 
Lisa Project at the DA’s office. It is inspiring. There are only two in the state of California. He 
attended the KART meeting. Nevada and 41 Bridge replacement is starting on September 2023 
through March 2024 there will be a detour on 41 to the Coast. Funds have been approved for the 
widening project of 41 and Excelsior. He thanked City staff for all their hard work. He is looking 
forward to the Strategic Goal Planning Session.

City Manager Olson informed Council that the Strategic Planning Session is tentatively scheduled 
for Monday, May 9, 2022.

Mayor Lyons thanked Dr. Ernie Smith, People’s Farming, and Parks and Recreation. He attended 
Battle of the Badges and watched Sergeant Henderson participate in his boxing match. He did 
really well and won his match. He participated at an event at Valley Animal Haven. He received 
a pie in the face. 



5

ADJOURNMENT

At 9:04 p.m., Council adjourned.

Approved the 19th day of April 2022.

APPROVED:

Stuart Lyons, Mayor
ATTEST:

Marisa Avalos, City Clerk



1

Item 3-2
April 5, 2022 Minutes

Lemoore City Council
Special Meeting

CALL TO ORDER:
At 7:00 p.m., the meeting was called to order.

ROLL CALL: Mayor: LYONS
Mayor Pro Tem: MATTHEWS
Council Members: CHANEY, GORNICK, ORTH

City Staff and contract employees present: City Manager Olson; Assistant City Manager Speer; 
City Attorney Lerner; Police Chief Kendall, City Clerk Avalos.

NEW BUSINESS – Section 1

1-1 Public Hearing – Redistricting of City Council Districts – Consideration of Mapping Options 
(Avalos)

City Clerk Avalos provided a presentation on the Redrawing of the Election District Boundaries.

Public Hearing opened: 7:00 p.m.

Spoke: Marisa Avalos, City Clerk

Public Hearing closed: 7:03 p.m.

Motion by Council Member Orth, seconded by Council Member Gornick, to approve Resolution 
2022-12, Adopting the Boundaries of the City Council Districts in Accordance with California 
Elections Code §§ 21601-21609 And Municipal Code§ 2-2.102(C).

Ayes: Orth, Gornick, Chaney, Matthews, Lyons
.

ADJOURNMENT

At 7:04 p.m., Council adjourned.

Approved the 19th day of April 2022.

APPROVED:

Stuart Lyons, Mayor
ATTEST:

Marisa Avalos, City Clerk



“In God We Trust”

  City of

LEMOORE
CALIFORNIA

711 West Cinnamon Drive Lemoore, California 93245 (559) 924-6744

Staff Report
Item No: 3-3

    
To: Lemoore City Council
From Michael Kendall, Police Chief
Date: April 5, 2022 Meeting Date: April 19, 2022
Subject: Second Reading – Ordinance 2022-02 – Adopting a Military Equipment 

Use Policy Pursuant to Assembly Bill 481

Strategic Initiative: 
Safe & Vibrant Community Growing & Dynamic Economy 

Fiscally Sound Government Operational Excellence

Community & Neighborhood Livability Not Applicable 

Proposed Motions:
Approve the second reading of Ordinance 2022-02, Adopting a Military Equipment Use 
Policy Pursuant to Assembly Bill 481.

Subject/Discussion:
On January 1, 2022, Governor Newsom signed into law Assembly Bill 481 (“AB 481”), 
codified under Government Code sections 7070 through 7075, which requires law 
enforcement agencies to obtain approval from the applicable governing body by an 
ordinance that adopts a military equipment use policy prior to obtaining funding, acquiring, 
or using military equipment. 

Lemoore Police Department (“LPD”) seeks City Council’s adoption of the attached Military 
Equipment Use Policy, Policy 709, by attached Ordinance in order to allow LPD to 
continue the use of equipment as specified therein.

Equipment deemed to be “military equipment” pursuant to AB 481 include, but are not 
limited to, unmanned aerial or ground vehicles, armored vehicles, command and control 
vehicles, pepper balls, less lethal shotguns, less lethal 40mm projectile launchers, long 
range acoustic devices, flashbangs, and foundational equipment, such as rifles. This
equipment is used as a component of overall best practices for law enforcement agencies 
throughout the country. These tools have been tested in the field and are used to enhance 



“In God We Trust”

citizen and officer safety. Any loss of use on this equipment would jeopardize the welfare 
of citizens and peace officers within the City.

There is a significant interest in ensuring that LPD continues to have access to equipment 
that will provide LPD as many options as possible to safeguard lives, ensure safety, and 
protect civil liberties. The use of military equipment is crucial to LPD’s mission and will 
continue to be strictly regulated through internal processes and oversight. 

The proposed ordinance seeks to approve Policy 709, which constitutes LPD’s Military 
Equipment Use Policy. The purpose of Policy 709 safeguards the public’s welfare, safety, 
civil rights, and civil liberties. Policy 709 ensures that there are safeguards, including 
transparency, oversight, and accountability measures in place. All items which result in a 
use of force will be investigated. 

Policy 709 outlines each item identified in Government Code section 7070 that is current 
owned by the City. Policy 709 also includes the current use and cost of each item. These 
particular items, and their stated uses, have been in place prior to the implementation of 
AB 481. There are no reasonable alternatives to the items listed in Policy 709. LPD has 
not discovered alternative items that can achieve the same objectives of officer and 
civilian safety. 

AB 481 requires LPD to annually submit a military equipment report for each approved 
type of military equipment to City Council for as long as the military equipment is available 
for use. In addition, LPD must make each annual report publicly available on its website 
for as long as the equipment is available for use. City Council must annually review the 
military equipment report submitted by LPD to determine whether each type of military 
equipment identified in the report continues to comply with the standard of approval, and 
whether to renew the ordinance at a regular meeting.

Future acquisition of any item deemed to be “military equipment” will require a further 
public meeting, policy update, and City Council approval.

Financial Consideration(s):
None foreseen at time of report. 

Alternatives or Pros/Cons:
Not adopt the ordinance. If the ordinance is not adopted, LPD will not be able to continue 
the use of military equipment to protect public’s welfare, safety, civil rights, and civil 
liberties.

Commission/Board Recommendation:
Not applicable.

Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends that City Council hold the second hearing of the proposed Ordinance 
2022-02, Adopting a Military Equipment Use Policy Pursuant to Assembly Bill 481.

Attachments: Review: Date:



“In God We Trust”

Resolution: Asst. City Manager 04/11/2022
Ordinance: 2022-02 City Attorney 04/15/2022
Map City Clerk 04/15/2022
Contract City Manager
Other: Policy 709 Finance 04/12/2022



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-02

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-02

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE
ADOPTING A MILITARY EQUIPMENT USE POLICY PURSUANT TO ASSEMBLY 

BILL 481 

THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF LEMOORE HEREBY DOES ORDAIN:

SECTION 1. FINDINGS.

The City Council finds:

A. On September 30, 2021, Governor Gavin Newsom signed into law Assembly Bill 481, 
which codified procedures of funding, acquisition and use of military equipment by law 
enforcement agencies under Government Code sections 7070 through 7075. 

B. Assembly Bill 481 requires law enforcement agencies to obtain approval from the 
applicable governing body by ordinance adopting a military equipment use policy prior to taking 
certain actions relating to funding, acquisition, or use of military equipment.

C. Assembly Bill 481 allows a city council of a city to approve the funding, acquisition, or 
use of military equipment within its jurisdiction only if it makes specified determinations
pursuant to Government Code section 7071.

D. Assembly Bill 481 requires law enforcement agencies to annually submit to the 
applicable governing body a military equipment report for each approved type of military 
equipment for as long as the military equipment is available for use, and to make each annual 
report publicly available on its website for as long as the equipment is available for use.

E. Assembly Bill 481 requires a city council that has adopted an ordinance approving a 
military equipment use policy to annually review the military equipment report submitted by the 
law enforcement agency to determine whether each type of military equipment identified in the 
report continues to comply with the standard of approval. 

F. Assembly Bill 481 requires a city council that has adopted an ordinance approving a 
military equipment use policy to annually review the ordinance and vote on whether to renew the 
ordinance at a regular meeting.

G. Policy 709 of the Lemoore Police Department Policy Manual has been prepared by the 
Lemoore Police Department as its proposed military equipment use policy, and it has been 
published on the Lemoore Police Department’s internet website since March 2, 2022.

H. A duly noticed public hearing was conducted by the City Council at its regular meeting 
on April 5, 2022, to consider Policy 709.



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-02
 
 

2
 

SECTION 2. DETERMINATIONS.

A. Based on the above-findings and the information provided to the City Council at the 
public meeting, the City Council determines that Policy 709 of the Lemoore Police Department 
Policy Manual complies with standards for approval under Government Code section 7071:

1. The identified military equipment is necessary because there is no reasonable 
alternative that can achieve the same objective of officer and civilian safety.

2. Policy 709 of the Lemoore Police Department Policy Manual will safeguard the 
public’s welfare, safety, civil rights, and civil liberties.

3. The purchase and use of the identified military equipment is reasonably cost 
effective compared to available alternatives that can achieve the same objective of officer and 
civilian safety. 

4. All military equipment uses prior to the adoption of Policy 709 of the Lemoore 
Police Department Policy Manual complied with applicable Department policy in effect at that 
time, and will continue to conform with future compliance.

B. Policy 709 of the Lemoore Police Department Policy Manual is approved and adopted.

SECTION 3. This Ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after its adoption and will not be 
codified in the City’s Municipal Code.

SECTION 4. The City Clerk is hereby directed to cause a summary of this Ordinance to be 
published by one insertion in a newspaper of general circulation in the community at least five 
(5) days prior to adoption and again fifteen (15) days after its adoption. If a summary of the 
ordinance is published, then the City Clerk shall cause a certified copy of the full text of the 
proposed ordinance to be posted in the office of the City Clerk at least five (5) days prior to the 
Council meeting at which the ordinance is adopted, and again after the meeting at which the 
ordinance is adopted. The summary shall be approved by the City Attorney. 

/ / /

/ / /

/ / /

/ / /

/ / /

/ / /

/ / /



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-02
 
 

3
 

The foregoing Ordinance No. 2022-02 was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of 
the City of Lemoore held on April 5, 2022, and was thereafter duly adopted at a regular meeting 
of said City Council held on April 19, 2022, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAINING:

ABSENT:

ATTEST: APPROVED:

Marisa Avalos, City Clerk Stuart Lyons, Mayor



“In God We Trust” 1

`                                                                           

  
City of

LEMOORE
CALIFORNIA

711 W. Cinnamon Drive Lemoore, California 93245 (559) 924-6744

Staff Report
Item No: 3-4

         
To: Lemoore City Council
From: Steve Brandt, City Planner
Date: February 18, 2022 Meeting Date:    April 19, 2022
Subject: Second Reading – Ordinance 2022-03 and Ordinance 2022-04 – Adopting 

the Prezoning No. 2021-03, and Planned Unit Development No. 2021-01
for Tract 935: A request by Lennar Homes to develop a 148-lot single-family 
residential subdivision, a total land development of 30.3 acres, with total 
annexation of 40.3 acres. The project site is located on the east side of 18 ¾ 
Avenue (Liberty Drive) and north of Hanford-Armona Road (APNs: 021-550-
001, -002, -003, -004, -005).

Strategic Initiative:

Safe & Vibrant Community Growing & Dynamic Economy 

Fiscally Sound Government Operational Excellence

Community & Neighborhood Livability Not Applicable 

Proposed Motion:

Adopt Ordinance No. 2022-03, approving Zoning Map Amendment (Pre-Zoning) No. 
2021-03 and waive the second reading.

Adopt Ordinance No. 2022-04, approving Planned Unit Development No. 2021-01 and
waive the second reading.

Subject/Discussion:
Pre-Zoning No. 2021-03 is a request to prezone 40.3 acres to Low Density Residential 
(LDR) in accordance with the City of Lemoore General Plan.



“In God We Trust” 2

Planned Unit Development No. 2021-01 is a request to approve new residential lots with a 
minimum of 4,320 to a maximum of 10,864 sq.ft. with modified minimum building setbacks.

The City Council, after holding a public hearing, voted 4-1 to approve the tentative, initiate 
the annexation, and introduce the two ordinances (first reading) at the April 5, 2022, regular 
meeting. The Planning Commission held a public hearing on March 14, 2022. The
Commission, on a 6-0 vote, recommended approval of all requests making up this project.

Project Proposal:
This project is requesting approval of Tract No. 935 for 148 lots single-family subdivision and 
annexation into the City of Lemoore. Proposed lot sizes range from 4,320 square feet to 
10,684 square feet, with an average lot size of approximately 4,930 square feet. A site plan 
of the proposed subdivision is shown on page 4 of this report; a version of the full tentative 
map is attached. 

Applicant Lennar Homes
Existing Land Use Agriculture 
APN(s) 021-550-001, 021-550-002, and 021-550-003 (development 

and annexation)
021-550-004, 021-550-005 (annexation only)

Lot Size Min. 4,320 sq.ft. – Max. 10,684 sq.ft. 
Current Zoning Limited Agriculture 10 ac. (AL) (Kings County)
Proposed Zoning Low Density Residential (RLD) (City of Lemoore)

Prezoning:
The prezoning of the site is required along with the initiation of annexation of the site.  The 
site proposed to be prezoned consistent with the General Plan.



“In God We Trust” 3

Site Location – Aerial Photo
Tract No. 935



“In God We Trust” 4

Proposed Tentative Subdivision Map
Tract No. 935 (full map in attachments)



“In God We Trust” 5

Planned Unit Development
The RLD (Low Density Residential) zone has a minimum lot size standard of 7,000 square 
feet per Lemoore Municipal Code (LMC), Table 9-5A-4A. The RLD zone has standard 
building setback requirements as follows: 18 feet front for living space, 20 feet front for 
garage, 5 feet interior side for single-story homes, 10 feet interior side for two-story homes, 
15 feet street side, 10 feet rear for single-story homes, and 15 feet rear for two-story homes, 
as shown in the Lemoore Municipal Code 9-5A-4A. The PUD requests modification to these 
standards.  The standards in the Code and the proposed alternative standards proposed in 
the PUD are shown in a table on page 9 of this report.

The trend of smaller lots with smaller setbacks started when new home prices increased 
dramatically in the mid 2000’s as a way of providing more affordable housing.  This trend 
appears to have been accepted by a large enough segment of the market that builders are 
continuing it.  The State’s emphasis on higher densities and more housing is consistent with 
this trend. Staff estimates that the proposed project will provide about 30 to 40 more homes 
than a project that was designed to meet the standard lot size and setbacks.  

Staff reviewed the proposed setbacks. The proposed setbacks are similar to the PUD 
setbacks that were approved for Tract 848 next to West Hills College. Staff supports the 
project setbacks for this neighborhood and home plans. At the Planning Commission hearing, 
it was suggested, and the applicant agreed to an additional condition that homes on Lots 24 
to 37 that would be adjacent to existing development be one-story only.

Comparison of Existing and Proposed Minimum Building Setbacks

Required by 
Zoning Ordinance

Applicant-
proposed Setbacks

for this PUD

Planning Commission 
Recommendation      

for this PUD

Minimum Lot 
Size 7,000 square feet 4,320 square feet 4,320 square feet

Front to Living 
Space 
(minimum)

18 feet with 2-foot 
stagger from 
adjacent homes

12 feet to covered 
porch

12 feet 12 feet 

Front to Garage 
(minimum) 20 feet 20 feet 20 feet

Interior Side 
(minimum)

5 feet for one-story

10 feet for two-story
5 feet (all) 5 feet (all)



“In God We Trust” 6

Street Side 
(minimum) 15 feet 10 feet 10 feet

Rear (minimum)
10 feet for one-story

15 feet for two-story

10 feet for one-story

15 feet for two-story

10 feet for one-story

15 feet for two-story
Height 
(maximum) 35 feet 35 feet 35 feet

Note – Planning Commission Recommendation would be that two-story are not allowed 
on Lots 24 to 37.

Environmental Assessment:
The City Council adopted an Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration, prepared for the 
project in accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), at the April 5th

meeting.

Recommended Findings and Conditions
The Planning Commission recommended findings for approval of the project. 

Financial Consideration(s):
The financial considerations are similar to other new residential subdivisions, and a public 
facilities maintenance district (PFMD) will be created to fund maintenance of public 
landscaping and infrastructure. The new traffic signal at Hanford-Armona Road / Liberty Drive 
would be funded by the traffic impact fee fund. This developer, as well as previous and future 
developers pay impact fees into that fund to cover their fair share of the traffic impacts that 
they generate.

Alternatives or Pros/Cons:
Alternatively, the Council could choose not to approve the 2nd reading of the ordinances.  This
would require that the approvals made on April 5th be brought back for a reopening of the
discussion about the project.

Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends that City Council hold the second hearing of the proposed Ordinances 
2022-03 and Ordinance 2022-04, adopting the Prezoning No. 2021-03, and Planned Unit 
Development No. 2021-01 for Tract 935

Attachments: Review: Date:
Resolution: Asst. City Manager 04/11/2022
Ordinance: 2022-03 & 2022-04 City Attorney 04/15/2022
Map   Tract Map 935 City Clerk 04/15/2022
Contract City Manager
Other Finance 04/12/2022



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-03

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-03

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE
PREZONING TERRITORY LOCATED ON THE EAST SIDE OF 18 ¾ AVENUE 

(LIBERTY DRIVE) AND NORTH OF HANFORD-ARMONA ROAD

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE HEREBY DOES ORDAIN:

SECTION 1. FINDINGS.

(a) The property owner Lennar Homes located on the east side of 18 ¾ Avenue (Liberty Drive) 
and north of Hanford-Armona Road (APNs: 021-550-001, -002, -003, -004, -005) has 
requested annexation into the City of Lemoore.

(b) The property owners have consented to annexation.

(c) Government Code Section 56375(a)(7) requires that applications to the Local Agency 
Formation Commission for annexation include prezoning of the territory proposed for 
annexation.

(d) This ordinance is consistent with the City of Lemoore General Plan, Lemoore Municipal 
Code and the Zoning Ordinance and would not be detrimental to the public interest, health, 
safety, convenience, and welfare of the City.

(e) A Mitigated Negative Declaration has been prepared and adopted in accordance with the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).

SECTION 2. LOCATION AND PREZONING. The property located on the east side of 18 ¾ 
Avenue (Liberty Drive) and north of Hanford-Armona Road (APNs: 021-550-001, -002, -
003, -004, -005) is hereby prezoned Low Density Residential (RLD).

SECTION 3. ZONING MAP. The official Zoning Map shall be amended to reflect this change 
upon completion of annexation proceedings.

SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY.

If any provision of this ordinance is declared unlawful by a court of competent jurisdiction, the 
City Council intends that the remaining provisions of this ordinance remain in effect.

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE.

The ordinance codified herein shall take effect and be in full force and effect from and after 
thirty (30) days after its final passage and adoption. Within fifteen (15) days after its adoption, 
the ordinance codified herein, or a summary of the ordinance codified herein, shall be 
published once in a newspaper of general circulation.



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-03

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *

The foregoing Ordinance No. 2022-03 was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of 
the City of Lemoore held on April 5, 2022, and was thereafter duly adopted at a regular meeting 
of said City Council held on April 19, 2022, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAINING:

ABSENT:

ATTEST: APPROVED:

Marisa Avalos, City Clerk Stuart Lyons, Mayor



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-04
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-04

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE
ADOPTING PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT NO. 2021-01 LOCATED ON THE 
EAST SIDE OF 18 ¾ AVENUE (LIBERTY DRIVE) AND NORTH OF HANFORD-

ARMONA ROAD

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE HEREBY DOES ORDAIN:

SECTION 1. FINDINGS.

(a) The property owner Lennar Homes located on the east side of 18 ¾ Avenue (Liberty Drive) 
and north of Hanford-Armona Road (APNs: 021-550-001, -002, -003) has requested 
approval of a Planned Unit Development (PUD).

(b) This Planned Unit Development is consistent with the City of Lemoore General Plan, 
Lemoore Municipal Code and the Zoning Ordinance and would not be detrimental to the 
public interest, health, safety, convenience, and welfare of the City.

(c) A Mitigated Negative Declaration has been prepared and adopted in accordance with the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).

(d) On March 14, 2022, the Planning Commission for the City of Lemoore recommended 
approval of the PUD, including specific building setbacks, subject to approval by the City 
Council of a zoning overlay for the PUD.

SECTION 2. PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT ESTABLISHMENT. 

A planned unit development is hereby established on property located on the east side of 18 
¾ Avenue (Liberty Drive) and north of Hanford-Armona Road just north of the City of 
Lemoore (Currently APN: 021-550-001, -002, -003); The official Zoning Map shall be 
amended to reflect this change.

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT OF CODE: ADOPTION OF PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
OVERLAY ZONES 

Article “B” of Chapter 9 of Title 9 of the Lemoore Municipal Code is amended as follows:

Table 9-9B-3-1, containing the adopted PUD overlay zones, is hereby amended to add PUD 
2021-01:



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-04
 

Number Name Date Approved Resolution 
Number

Average Density Per 
Gross Acre (du/ac)

2021-01 Lennar Homes, 
Tract 935

April 5, 2022 2022-16 6.3

Table 9-9B-4-1, containing specific development standards in the adopted PUD overlay zones, 
is hereby amended to add PUD 2021-01:

Number Name Front Setback Side Setback Rear Setback

2021-01 Lennar Homes, 
Tract 935

12’ to living space

20’ to garage

5’ interior side

10’ street side

10 feet for one-story

15 feet for two-story

One-story homes only 
on TSM Lots 24 to 37

SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY.

If any provision of this ordinance is declared unlawful by a court of competent jurisdiction, the 
City Council intends that the remaining provisions of this ordinance remain in effect.

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE.

The ordinance codified herein shall take effect and be in full force and effect from and after 
thirty (30) days after its final passage and adoption. Within fifteen (15) days after its adoption, 
the ordinance codified herein, or a summary of the ordinance codified herein, shall be 
published once in a newspaper of general circulation.

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-04
 

The foregoing Ordinance No. 2022-04 was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of 
the City of Lemoore held on April 5, 2022, and was thereafter duly adopted at a regular meeting 
of said City Council held on April 19, 2022, by the following vote: 

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAINING:

ABSENT:

ATTEST: APPROVED:

Marisa Avalos, City Clerk Stuart Lyons, Mayor



LO
T 

TA
B

LE

TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP
COUNTY TRACT 935

for:

LENNAR HOMES OF CALIFORNIA, INC.
8080 N. PALM AVE., SUITE 110

FRESNO, CA 93711 LENNAR HOMES OF CALIFORNIA, INC.

V
IC

IN
IT

Y
 M

A
P

LE
G

E
N

D
:

O
W

N
E

R
:

A
P

P
LI

C
A

N
T:

LE
G

A
L 

D
E

S
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
:

G
E

N
E

R
A

L 
IN

FO
R

M
A

TI
O

N
:

A
R

E
A

:

LO
T 

IN
FO

R
M

A
TI

O
N

:

TO
P

O
 L

E
G

E
N

D
:



  
City of

LEMOORE
CALIFORNIA

711 West Cinnamon Lemoore, California 93245 (559) 924-6744 Fax (559) 924-9003

Staff Report

Item No: 3-5
         

To: Lemoore City Council
From: Faith Faria, Administrative Assistant 
Date: March 17, 2022 Meeting Date: April 19, 2022
Subject: Budget Amendment and Agreement between the County of Kings and 

the City of Lemoore to Provide a Sub Award for FY 2019 State Homeland 
Security Grant Programs Funding

Strategic Initiative: 

Safe & Vibrant Community Growing & Dynamic Economy 

Fiscally Sound Government Operational Excellence

Community & Neighborhood Livability Not Applicable 

Proposed Motion:
Approve the budget amendment and agreements between the County of Kings and the 
City of Lemoore to provide a sub award from FY 2019 State Homeland Security Grant 
Program (SHSGP) Funding. If granted, will request formal acceptance of the grant.

Subject/Discussion:
Each year Lemoore Police Department & Lemoore Volunteer Fire Department can
request funds from the Homeland Security Grant Program along with other municipalities 
within Kings County to the Office of Emergency Services (OES). The SHSGP requires 
that projects requested enhance the capabilities of the state and local first responders.
Agencies are allowed to request advanced equipment to help with a multitude of 
categories, including communications, terrorism response, and specific emergency 
response items.

The City of Lemoore Volunteer Fire Department requested projects designed to enhance 
the capabilities of local first responders by allowing the purchase of advanced types of 
equipment, including pagers, radios, and extraction equipment. As the State has notified 



Kings County OES that projects for the FY 2019 SHSGP cycle were approved, the City 
is now required to a sign an agreement with Kings County, identifying the City of Lemoore 
as a sub recipient.

Financial Consideration(s):
Funds from FY 2019 State Homeland Security Grant Program will fund the Lemoore 
Volunteer Fire Department purchase of radios, pagers, thermal imaging cameras and 
extraction equipment totaling $86,600. 

The current City of Lemoore FY 2022 annual budget includes $40,000 (4222-4220) in 
expenditures for FY 2019 SHSGP project (radios and pagers). At the time the City’s 
annual budget for FY 2022 was approved, the City had not yet received approval from 
the State for the FY 2019 SHSGP project. Now that the State has authorized the purchase 
of the FY 2019 SHSGP projects which include extraction equipment, a budget 
amendment in the amount of $46,600 is necessary to purchase all items (thermal imaging 
cameras and extraction equipment) and submit for reimbursement. The State Homeland 
Security Grant Program reimburses entities for 100% of authorized projects. 

Alternatives or Pros/Cons:
Pros:

Provide Interoperable Communication Equipment
Replace aging equipment for more efficient and effective emergency response
Fully reimbursed through the SHSGP process

Cons:
None noted

Commission/Board Recommendation:
N/A

Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends that the City Council approve the budget amendment and agreements
between the City of Lemoore and the County of Kings for the FY 2019 Homeland Security 
Grant for Lemoore Volunteer Fire Department and authorize the City Manager, or 
designee, to sign the agreement.

Attachments: Review: Date:
Resolution: Assistant City Manager 04/11/2022
Ordinance: City Attorney 04/15/2022
Map City Manager
Contract City Clerk 04/15/2022
Other Finance 04/12/2022
.

      Agreement



1 

Agreement No. ______

Agreement between the County of Kings and the City of Lemoore to provide a sub-
award from the FY 2019 State Homeland Security Grant Programs Funding for 

Equipment, Planning, Administration, Training and Exercises

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by and between the County of Kings (“County”) and 
the City of Lemoore (“Sub-recipient”), referred to individually herein as “Party” or collectively as 
“Parties,” on the following terms and conditions:

WHEREAS, the Fiscal Year 2019 (FY 2019) California State Homeland Security Grant 
Program (SHSGP) provides funding through Federal grants from the Department of Homeland 
Security (“DHS”) to enhance the capabilities of state and local first responders by allowing the 
purchase of advanced types of equipment, as well as addressing other critical homeland security 
needs, including administration, planning, training, and exercise-related costs; and

WHEREAS, County applied to the California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services 
(“CalOES”) for a FY 2019 SHSGP grant; and

WHEREAS, as part of its grant application, County requested sufficient funds to support 
certain activities or programs planned by Sub-recipient that may be eligible for SHSGP grant 
funds; and

WHEREAS, the County was awarded FY 2019 SHSGP grant funding; and 

WHEREAS, the County, upon recommendation of the Local Approval Authority (“LAA”), 
as comprised of the Sheriff, the County Fire Chief, the County Public Health Director, a municipal 
law enforcement representative, and a municipal fire department representative, as described in 
the SHSGP Guidelines, allocated some of this funding to support Sub-recipient’s eligible programs 
or activities. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which is hereby acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound hereby, the County and Sub-
recipient hereby agree as follows:

1. GRANT SUBAWARD. Subject to the terms, conditions, and other limitations 
specified herein, the County intends to award to Sub-recipient a portion of its FY 2019 SHSGP
Grant for the following program and/or activity: 

Department/Agency: City of Lemoore, on behalf of Lemoore Volunteer Fire Department

Program/Activity: Pagers/Radios; Thermal Imaging Cameras; Jaws of Life; Breathing               
Apparatus                                                                                                          

Details about the specific program or activity authorized, the amounts allocated to the 
specified program or activity, and the anticipated performance and disbursement timelines shall 
be confirmed by subsequent award letter from the County (“Award Letter”) in accordance with 
this Agreement. 



2 

Sub-recipient agrees not to expend any anticipated FY 2019 SHSGP grant funds until 
it has received an Award Letter authorizing the specific activity or program, and confirmed 
the award amount.

Unless Sub-recipient notifies the County before it begins spending the funds authorized in 
the Award Letter that it declines some or all of the program, activity, and/or funds outlined therein, 
Sub-recipient will be deemed to have accepted all of the terms and conditions specified in the 
Award Letter, including any attachments or exhibits there to. 

The County reserves the exclusive right to determine the method and timing of 
disbursement of SHSGP funds to Sub-recipient.   The County further reserves the right to issue 
revised Award Letters to modify Sub-recipient’s authorized program, activity, award amounts, 
and/or performance periods in accordance with the recommendations of the LAA, the changing 
needs of Sub-recipient, and/or the likelihood of Sub-recipient expending its award. Such 
modifications will only be made after consultation with Sub-recipient and in accordance with the 
recommendations of the LAA.

2. PERFORMANCE PERIOD. The Performance Period for all activities covered by 
the terms of this Agreement shall be from September 1, 2019 to May 31, 2022, unless otherwise 
terminated pursuant to the terms of this Agreement or set forth in the Performance Letter. Only 
activities performed during the Performance Period are eligible for funding and/or reimbursement 
under this Agreement.

3. GRANT REQUIREMENTS AND ASSURANCES.  Sub-recipient understands and 
agrees that by accepting grant funds under this Agreement, it must comply with all requirements, 
assurances, standards, and certifications as required under the County’s agreement with CalOES, 
attached hereto as Exhibit A, and incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.  Sub-
recipient further understands and agrees that it shall comply with any and all applicable statutes, 
regulations, guidelines, or restrictions as imposed by DHS or CalOES.  Finally, Sub-recipient 
understands and agrees that by accepting funds under this Agreement, it shall be bound to the 
assurances, agreements, covenants, and requirements set forth in the County’s agreement with 
CalOES to the same extent as the County.  

4. DESIGNATED COUNTY AUTHORIZED AGENT. Only those individuals 
designated by resolution of the Kings County Board of Supervisors as Authorized Agents for FY 
2019 SHSGP (“County Authorized Agents”) are authorized to sign Award Letters on behalf of the 
County, or to suspend performance as set forth herein. All other notices from the County may 
come from other County personnel.

5. PROOF OF SUBRECIPIENT AUTHORITY. Sub-recipient must provide proof to 
the County of written authorization of this project, in the form of a resolution, or some other format 
specifically authorized by the County, from its city council, governing board, or other governing 
body. This written authorization must specify Sub-recipient:

(a) Will provide all matching funds required for the grant project and appropriate any cash 
match as required;



3 

(b) Will assume any liability arising out of Sub-recipient’s performance of this Agreement;

(c) Will not use grant funds to supplant expenditures controlled by the city council, 
governing board, or authorized body; and

(d) Has authorized the official executing this Agreement to do so.

6. DISALLOWANCE AND OFFSET; REDUCATION, MODIFICATION, OR 
ELIMINATION OF GRANT FUNDING.  If Sub-recipient requests or receives payment from 
the County for programs, activities, or equipment under this Agreement and the reimbursement is 
later disallowed by the State of California or the United States Government, Sub-recipient
understands and agrees that it shall promptly refund the disallowed amount to the County upon the 
County’s request. The County may elect, at its sole option, and to the fullest extent permitted by 
law, to satisfy the disallowed amount owed from any payment due or to become due to Sub-
recipient under this Agreement. 

If the County’s FY 2019 SHSGP grant funding is reduced, modified, or eliminated for any 
reason, the County reserves the right to reduce, modify, or eliminate any or all of this FY 2019 
SHSGP grant sub-award to Sub-recipient.  Sub-recipient agrees to promptly return any amounts 
requested by the County in accordance with this provision.  At its sole option, the County may 
choose to satisfy the amount to be returned by reducing the amount due to Sub-recipient from any 
payment due or to become due under this Agreement.

7. MONITORING AND REPORTS. Sub-recipient is responsible for oversight of the 
operations of its FY 2019 SHSGP grant supported activities. Sub-recipient must monitor its 
activities to ensure compliance with applicable Federal requirements as set forth in Exhibit A. 

Sub-recipient agrees to provide ongoing performance and financial reports regarding any 
and all of its programs and activities funded with FY 2019 SHSGP grant funding. At a minimum, 
these reports will be due on a semi-annual basis, but the County reserves the right to request more 
frequent reporting. Within 90 days of completion or termination of this Agreement, Sub-recipient 
is also expected to provide a final performance report and a final expenditure report in a format 
acceptable to the County, the State, and the Federal government. Sub-recipient will be notified of 
any additional required reports by separate Award Letter or notice from the County.

8. MANDATORY DISCLOSURES. Pursuant to 2 CFR section 200.113, Sub-recipient 
must disclose, in a timely manner, and in writing to the County and DHS, all violations of Federal 
criminal law involving fraud, bribery, or gratuity violations potentially affecting this sub-award. 
Pursuant to the terms and conditions outlined in Appendix XII to 2 CFR Part 200 (“Award Term 
and Condition for Recipient Integrity and Performance Matters”), Sub-recipient may also be also 
required to report certain civil, criminal, or administrative proceedings to SAM.  Failure to make 
required disclosures can result in any of the remedies described in 2 CFR section 200.338, 
“Remedies for noncompliance,” including suspension or debarment.

9. INSURANCE. Sub-recipient certifies it is insured or self-insured for general liability 
exposures with limits of no less than $1 million per occurrence. Sub-recipient certifies it is insured 
or self-insured for workers’ compensation and maintains statutory limits. Sub-recipient agrees that 



4 

coverage limits specified within the Agreement will not be used to reduce limits of coverage from 
Sub-recipient’s full policy limits. Insurance Policies will not be used to limit liability or to limit 
the indemnification provisions and requirements of this Agreement or act in any way to reduce 
available coverage and limits from the insurer. Failure to maintain or renew coverage may be a 
material breach of this Agreement.

10. LIABILITY OF COUNTY.  The County’s payment obligations to Sub-recipient for 
FY 2019 SHSGP funds are limited by all provisions and other requirements specified in this 
Agreement. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in no event shall the County 
be liable, regardless of whether any claim is based on contract or tort, for any special, 
consequential, indirect, or incidental damages arising out of or in connection with this Agreement, 
including, but not limited to, lost profits, equipment purchased, or activities performed in 
connection with this Agreement.

11. HOLD HARMLESS, INDEMNIFICATION, AND DEFENSE.  Each Party shall 
hold harmless, defend, and indemnify the other Party, its agents, officials, officers, and 
employees from and against any liability, claims, actions, costs, damages or losses of any kind, 
including injury to any person and/or damage to property arising out of or relating the Party’s 
acts or omissions under this Agreement.  This indemnification obligation shall continue beyond 
the term of this Agreement as to any acts or omissions occurring under this Agreement or any 
extension of this Agreement.

12. TERMINATION

(a) Without Cause (For Convenience): Either Party may terminate this Agreement for 
convenience by giving thirty (30) days prior written notice to the other Party of its intention to 
terminate pursuant to this provision, specifying the date of termination.  After receiving a notice 
of termination for convenience from Sub-recipient, and prior to the effective date of termination, 
the County may, in its sole discretion, continue to disburse grant funding to Sub-recipient for the 
programs or activities permitted under this Agreement and specified in the effective Award 
Letter(s); however, the County specifically reserves the right to cancel or modify some of the 
programs or activities specified in the Award Letter if it seems unlikely Sub-recipient will 
complete its work before the termination of the contract. Any funding disbursed to Sub-recipient 
but not yet spent at the time the Agreement is terminated must be returned to the County. All such 
disbursements continue to be subject to the restrictions otherwise provided in this Agreement or 
by law.

The Parties will not impose sanctions on each other for a termination for convenience.

(b) With Cause: Either party may terminate this Agreement immediately by written notice 
to the other Party upon discovery of a material breach by the other Party.  A material breach 
includes, but is not limited to: (i) failure to comply with the terms and conditions of this Agreement 
or of any Award Letter(s); (ii) a material misrepresentation in relation to this grant program; or 
(iii) failure to comply with all applicable laws or regulations. The Party seeking to terminate this 
Agreement will provide written notice of the material breach and its determination to either 
suspend or terminate this Agreement to the other Party with a specified date of termination. At a 
Party’s discretion, it may provide the breaching Party with a reasonable period of time to cure the 



5 

breach.  If the County terminates this Agreement for cause, the County reserves the right to reduce, 
modify, or eliminate any or all of this sub-award and any other outstanding SHSGP sub-awards to 
Sub-recipient. Upon demand by the County, Sub-recipient agrees to immediately return FY 2019 
SHSGP funding that has been disbursed to Sub-recipient and which remains in Sub-recipient’s 
possession at the time this Agreement is terminated. In addition, the payment of any grant funds 
that have yet to be disbursed for work already completed by Sub-recipient under this Agreement 
remains subject to the restrictions on payments otherwise provided in this Agreement and by law, 
and is further conditioned on the County’s confirmation of Sub-recipient’s satisfactory completion 
of the activities or programs specified in this Agreement and any related Award Letter(s).

The County will not pay lost anticipated profits or other economic loss, nor will the County 
pay compensation or make reimbursement to cure any breach arising out of or resulting from such 
termination for cause.  If this Agreement is terminated for cause, the County may impose sanctions, 
including possible rejection of future proposals based on specific causes of non-performance. 
Furthermore, if this Agreement is terminated for Sub-recipient’s failure to comply with applicable 
federal statutes or regulations, including, but not limited to, those specifically incorporated into 
this Agreement by reference, Sub-recipient is advised that the County’s termination decision may 
be considered in evaluating future applications for federal grant awards.

(c) Effects of Completion or Termination: Expiration, completion, or termination of this 
Agreement shall not terminate the Parties’ obligations to indemnify, defend, or hold harmless.  
Further, it shall not effect Sub-recipient’s duty to maintain and make available any records 
pertaining to the Agreement; to cooperate with any audit; to be subject to offset; to make any 
reports of pre-termination contract activities; to honor its obligations related to the disposal or 
disposition of property purchased with SHSGP funding; to comply with the continuing obligations 
contained in Exhibit A; or to comply with any other continuing or closeout obligations required 
by this Agreement or by federal or state law or regulation, including those specified in 2 CFR Part 
200. Where Sub-recipient’s activities or programs have been terminated by the County for cause, 
said termination will not affect any rights of the County to recover damages from or against Sub-
recipient.

(d) Suspension of Performance: Independent of any right to terminate this Agreement, the 
County’s Authorized Agent may immediately suspend performance by Sub-recipient, in whole or 
in part, in response to health, safety, or financial emergency, a change in SHSGP grant funding to 
the County, or a failure or refusal by Sub-recipient to comply with the provisions of this 
Agreement, until such time as the cause for suspension is resolved or a notice of termination 
becomes effective.

13. RECORDS. Sub-recipient shall maintain complete and accurate records with respect 
to the activities, programs, and/or purchases funded by or related to FY 2019 SHSGP funding 
and/or this Agreement, including all records relating to procurement of goods and services. In 
addition, Sub-recipient shall maintain complete and accurate records with respect to any payments 
to employees, sub-sub-awardees, contractors, or subcontractors. All such records shall be prepared 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting procedures and any applicable procedures 
required by the County or the Federal or State government. All applicable records shall be clearly 
identified, maintained on site, and be kept readily accessible.



6 

Sub-recipient further agrees to make all such records available to Federal, State, and 
County representatives, as further specified in Exhibit A. Sub-recipient shall ensure that members 
of the public also have access to such records upon request in accordance with the Freedom of 
Information Act and the California Public Records Act. Sub-recipient specifically agrees to require 
any sub-sub-recipients, contractors, successors, transferees, and assignees to acknowledge and 
agree to comply with all of these record keeping and access requirements.

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the 
grant, termination of the grant, or both. Sub-recipient may be ineligible for award of any future 
grants if the County or Cal OES determines that any of the following has occurred: (1) the recipient 
has made a false certification, or (2) violates the certification by failing to carry out the 
requirements as noted above.

14. NOTICES. Except as may be otherwise required by law, any notice to be given must 
be in writing and be either personally delivered, sent by facsimile transmission, or sent by first 
class mail, postage prepaid and addressed as follows:

COUNTY: With a Copy To:
Chief Bill Lynch
County Fire Chief
Kings County Fire Department/ 
Office of Emergency Management

County Administrative Officer
1400 W. Lacey Blvd. 
Hanford, CA 93230

280 Campus Drive
Hanford, CA 93230
Phone No.: (559) 852-2883
Fax No.: (559) 582-8261

Phone No.: (559) 852-2378
Fax No.: (559) 582- 8261

SUBRECIPIENT:
Lemoore Volunteer Fire Department
Fire Chief
Bruce German
210 Fox St.
Lemoore, CA 93245
Phone No.: 559-924-6797

Notice personally delivered is effective when delivered. Notice sent by facsimile 
transmission is deemed to be received upon successful transmission. Notice sent by first class mail 
shall be deemed received on the fifth (5th) day after the date of mailing. Either party may change 
the above address by giving written notice pursuant to this paragraph.

15. CONFLICTS WITH LAWS OR REGULATIONS/SEVERABILITY. This 
Agreement is subject to all applicable laws and regulations. If any provision of this Agreement is 
found by any court or other legal authority, or is agreed by the parties, to be in conflict with any 
code or regulation governing its subject matter, the conflicting provision shall be considered null 
and void. If the effect of nullifying any conflicting provision is such that a material benefit of the 
Agreement to either party is lost, the Agreement may be terminated at the option of the affected 
party, and some or all of the grant money may need to be returned to the County. Such a termination 



7 

will be treated as a termination for cause, as set forth herein. In all other cases, the remainder of 
the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

16. MODIFICATION. No part of this Agreement may be modified without the written 
consent of both Parties.

17. EXHIBITS AND RECITALS. The Recitals and the Exhibit to this Agreement are 
fully incorporated into and are integral parts of this Agreement.

18. GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement shall be interpreted and governed under the 
laws of the State of California without reference to California conflicts of law principles. The 
Parties agree that this contract is made in and shall be performed in Kings County, California.

19. FURTHER ASSURANCES. Each Party will execute any additional documents and 
perform any further acts which may be reasonably required to effectuate the purposes of this 
Agreement.

20. NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. Unless specifically set forth, the Parties to 
this Agreement do not intend to provide any other party with any benefit or enforceable legal or 
equitable right or remedy.

21. CONTINUING WAIVER. The failure of either Party to insist on strict compliance 
with any provision of this Agreement shall not be considered a waiver of any right to do so, 
whether for that breach or any subsequent breach. The acceptance by either Party of either 
performance or payment shall not be considered to be a waiver of any preceding breach of the 
Agreement by the other Party.

22. HEADINGS. Section headings are provided for organizational purposes only and do 
not in any manner affect the scope, meaning, or intent of the provisions under the headings.

23. ORDER OF PRECEDENCE. In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between 
the Agreement and any Award Letter or other communication between the County and Sub-
recipient, the terms of this Agreement shall prevail.

24. ASSIGNMENT. This Agreement is entered into by the County in reliance on the 
identity and representations made by Sub-recipient, and no part of this Agreement or this sub-
award (including any equipment purchased with the sub-award) may be assigned, transferred, or 
sold by Sub-recipient without the prior written consent of the County, which the County may 
provide, delay, deny, or condition in its absolute discretion.  Any FY 2019 SHSGP funds provided 
to Sub-recipient and not yet expended at the time of any attempted unauthorized assignment or 
transfer will be forfeit to the County at the time of attempted assignment or transfer. Furthermore, 
the voluntary or involuntary assignment of this Agreement to a receiver or trustee in bankruptcy, 
will constitute a material breach and will automatically terminate this Agreement without advance 
notice or opportunity to cure.

25. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. Sub-recipient shall comply with all applicable laws, 
ordinances, rules, and regulations and obtain and keep current all permits, licenses and/or 



8 

approvals required by law to perform the activities or services, or to purchase any equipment, 
specified in this Agreement.

26. CONFLICT OF INTEREST. Sub-recipient agrees to comply with the law of the 
State of California regarding conflicts of interests and appearance of conflicts of interests, 
including, but not limited to Government Code Section 1090 et seq., and the Political Reform 
Act, Government Code Section 81000 et seq. and regulations promulgated pursuant thereto by 
the California Fair Political Practices Commission.  Sub-recipient further agrees that if any facts 
come to its attention which raise any questions as to the applicability of conflicts of interest laws, 
it will immediately inform the County designated representative and provide all information 
needed for resolution of this question.

27. COUNTERPARTS. The Parties may sign this Agreement in counterparts, each of 
which is an original and all of which, taken together, form a single document.

28. CERTIFICATION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: The undersigned represents 
that he/she is authorized to enter into this Agreement for and on behalf of the Sub-recipient.  As
the duly authorized representative of the Sub-recipient, the undersigned hereby certifies that the 
Sub-recipient has the legal authority to apply for County, State, and Federal assistance and the 
institutional, managerial and financial capability, including funds sufficient to pay any non-Federal 
share of project cost, to ensure proper planning, management and completion of the project 
described in the FY 2019 SHSGP application, within the prescribed timelines.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]



9 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and 
year signed by the last Party below.

COUNTY OF KINGS

By: ______________________________ 
Joe Neves, Chairman
Board of Supervisors 

Date: ______________________________ 

ATTEST:

Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

By: ______________________________ 
Catherine Venturella

Date: ______________________________  

Approved as to form: 
Diane Freeman, County Counsel 

By:  ______________________________ 
 Sean Cash, Deputy County Counsel 

SUBRECIPIENT

By:  ______________________________  

Title: ______________________________ 

Date: ______________________________ 

___________________________________ _______________________________ ____________________________________________ ______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ ________________________________________________________________________________________________ ____
CCCCCCCCCCCCC hhhh D t C t C



EXHIBIT A

A-1 
 

 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT A

A-2 
 



EXHIBIT A

A-3 
 



EXHIBIT A

A-4 
 



EXHIBIT A

A-5 
 



EXHIBIT A

A-6 
 



EXHIBIT A

A-7 
 



EXHIBIT A

A-8 
 



EXHIBIT A

A-9 
 



EXHIBIT A

A-10 
 

 



EXHIBIT A

A-11 
 



EXHIBIT A

A-12 
 

 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT A

A-13 
 

 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT A

A-14 
 



Date: Request By:

Requesting Department: 

TYPE OF BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUEST:

Appropriation Transfer within Budget Unit

All other appropriations (Attach Council approved Staff Report)

FROM:

Fund Budget Unit Account Current Budget Proposed
Increase/Decrease: Proposed New Budget

001 1010 Reserves (46,600.00)$                     (46,600.00)$                                

      

TO:

Fund Budget Unit Account Current Budget Proposed
Increase/Decrease: Proposed New Budget

001 4222 4220 125,355.00$             46,600.00$                      171,955.00$                               

APPROVALS: 

3/30/2022 Faith Faria

Lemoore Volunteer Fire Department 

CITY OF LEMOORE
BUDGET AMENDMENT FORM

JUSTIFICATION FOR CHANGE/FUNDING SOURCE:

Additional funds for FY 2019 Homeland Security Grants - 100% of funding is reimbursed through SHSGP

Completed By:  Date:

Department Head: Date:

Date:City Manager:



“In God We Trust”

  
     City of

LEMOORE
CALIFORNIA

711 West Cinnamon Drive Lemoore, California 93245 (559) 924-6744 Fax (559) 924-9003

Staff Report

Item No: 3-6
         

To: Lemoore City Council
From: Frank Rivera, Public Works Director
Date: February 18, 2022 Meeting Date: April 19, 2022
Subject: Subdivision Agreement and Final Map – Tract 820 – Energy Homes, Inc. 

dba G.J. Gardner Homes

Strategic Initiative: 
Safe & Vibrant Community Growing & Dynamic Economy 

Fiscally Sound Government Operational Excellence

Community & Neighborhood Livability Not Applicable 

Proposed Motion:
Approve the Subdivision Agreement for Tract No. 820 with Energy Homes, Inc. dba G.J. 
Gardner Homes, and authorize the City Manager, or designee to sign; accept the Final 
Subdivision Map for Tract 820 and direct City Clerk to sign Final Map cover page and 
record final subdivision map with additional documents; and accept letter for inclusion of 
Tract No. 820 into their designated Public Facilities Maintenance District.

Subject/Discussion:
G.J. Gardner has taken over Tract 820 and the subdivision agreement consisting of 32 
lots, with 29 lots being single-family homes, and the final map is attached for review. G.J. 
Gardner has designated 3 lots for a basin, parking, and a park. The subdivision is located 
southwest of the Vine Street and Iona Avenue intersection. 

The subdivision map and construction drawings have been reviewed and approved by 
staff and the City Engineer. In addition, the bonds have been submitted per the 
subdivision agreement and the applicable fees have been paid. The request for inclusion 
of Tract No. 820 in the in the Public Facilities Maintenance District has been received. 

Financial Consideration (s):
None at this time.



“In God We Trust”

Alternatives or Pros/Cons:
Pros:

Additional 29 single-family homes in Lemoore.

Cons:
None noted.

Commission/Board Recommendation:
None noted.

Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends City Council approve the Subdivision Agreement for Tract No. 820 with 
Energy Homes, Inc. dba G.J. Gardner Homes and authorize the City Manager, or 
designee to sign. Accept and record final subdivision map with additional documents and 
begin the process to include Tract No. 820 in their designated Public Facilities 
Maintenance District. 

Attachments: Review: Date:
Resolution: Asst. City Manager 04/11/2022
Ordinance: City Attorney 04/15/2022
Map City Clerk 04/15/2022
Contract City Manager
Other Finance 04/12/2022
List: Final Map

PFMD Inclusion



                               

1

CITY OF LEMOORE

SUBDIVISION TRACT AGREEMENT
TRACT NO. 820

FAIRWAY COURTYARD

THIS AGREEMENT, made the _________ day of _________________, 2022 by and between 
the City Council of the City of Lemoore, hereinafter referred to as "CITY" and Energy Homes Inc. dba 
G.J. Gardner Homes hereinafter referred to as the "SUBDIVIDER".

W I T N E S S E T H

WHEREAS, the Subdivider as the owner has heretofore filed a tentative subdivision map of 
that certain real property known and designated as TRACT NO. 820 in the City, and

WHEREAS, the Subdivider has presented to City a certain proposed final map, a copy of 
which is on file at the office of the Director of Public Works, and by reference thereto made a part of 
this agreement, and said Subdivider has requested the City to accept the dedications delineated and 
shown on said map for the use and purpose specified thereon, and to otherwise approve said map in 
order that the same may be recorded as required by law, and

WHEREAS, the City requires, as a condition precedent to the acceptance and approval of said 
map, the dedication of such streets, highways, and public places and easements as are delineated 
and shown on said map, and deems the same necessary for public use, and requires and deems as 
necessary for the public use that any and all streets delineated and shown thereon shall be improved 
by the construction thereon and the installation therein of the improvements in said proposed 
subdivision as hereinafter specified, and

WHEREAS, the parties hereto have agreed that the improvement of said land included and 
shown by said final map shall be completed in accordance with the applicable ordinances and 
resolutions of the City and the laws of the State of California and the Subdivider has agreed to post 
the necessary improvement security to guarantee said improvement in accordance with the laws of 
the State of California and the ordinances of the City.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the acceptance of the offers of dedication of streets, 
highways, public ways, easements, and facilities as shown and delineated on said map, and the 
approval of said map for filing and recording as provided and required by law, it is mutually 
understood and agreed by and between the Subdivider and City and they do hereby mutually agree 
as follows:

1. Onsite and Offsite Improvements.  Subdivider agrees that it will construct and install 
in accordance with the plans prepared for Tract No. 820 by Harbison International, Inc. and approved 
by the City Engineer, which plans are hereby incorporated by reference, at its sole cost and expense 
and in full conformity with the standards prescribed by City, all of the
following work and subdivision improvements. 

A. All landmarks, monuments and lot corners required to locate the divisions 
shown on the Final Map.  Pursuant to Section 66497 of the State Subdivision 
Map Act prior to the City's final acceptance of the subdivision and release of 
securities, the Subdivider shall submit evidence to the City of payment and 
receipt thereof by the Subdivider's engineer or surveyor for the final setting of 



                               

2

all monuments required in the subdivision.

B. Street improvements including curbs, gutters, sidewalks, paving and street 
signs.

C. Storm drainage facilities including valley gutters.  

D. Extension of the City water system including water mains, valves, services, fire 
hydrants and miscellaneous appurtenances.

E. Sanitary sewer system including sewer mains, manholes, house branches and 
appurtenances.  

F. Street lighting facilities, including electroliers, stands and underground electrical 
service.

G. Street trees shall be planted by the Developer at the time the dwelling unit on 
the lot is finale.  Number of trees to be planted shall be calculated on the length 
of curb and gutter within the local subdivision area divided by 40 feet. The 
variety of tree shall be selected by the Tree Committee from the Master Street 
Tree list. 

H. Public utility facilities including gas, electric, telephone and cable television 
service.  Financial arrangements shall be made with the respective public utility, 
and proof of this arrangement shall be furnished to the City upon request.

I. Street signs, striping and pavement markers shall be installed by Developer.

J.        Special Fence and Wall Requirements:
i. Perimeter Walls for Residential Subdivisions: Where provided, 

perimeter walls for residential subdivisions shall comply with the following 
standards:

ii. The walls shall be of a decorative design consistent with the following:
1. Walls shall have vertical elements (e.g., pilasters, indentations) of 

differing colors and/or materials at least every one hundred feet (100');
2. Walls shall include capstones (with limited overhang) of a coordinating 

color, material, and style as the rest of the wall;
3. Walls shall be of neutral color and shall be textured with stone, brick, 

stucco, or other surface finish.
iii. Periodic breaks shall be provided in the wall to provide pedestrian and bicycle 

connectivity between the subdivision and the adjoining collector or arterial 
street.

iv. Walls shall be constructed along the property line between the residential units 
and the required landscape easement along the collector or arterial street.

v. The wall height shall be a minimum of six feet eight inches (6'8") or as 
otherwise required to adequately attenuate noise of the abutting collector or 
arterial street or state highway.

vi. Walls shall not be located inside of the required clear visibility area at the 
intersections of streets.



                               

3

K. If Subdivider has not acquired all necessary rights of way and easements as of 
the date the final map is recorded, and the City must undertake the acquisitions 
pursuant to Section 66462.5 of the Government Code, Subdivider shall pay 
100% of City’s acquisition costs, including, but not limited to, appraisal and 
court costs and attorney’s fees and shall make such deposits and/or advance 
payments to the City as the City may reasonably require for such purpose.

L.       Initial compaction and soil tests for street, sewer, water, storm drain and other              
work within the public right of way shall be ordered by and paid for by the 
Subdivider.  Sewer and utility trench tests shall be taken in varying locations and 
depths as required by the City Engineer or Public Works Director.  Compaction 
tests failing to meet the City's requirements shall be reordered by the Subdivider. 

M. Developer shall agree to form a Public Facilities Maintenance District (PFMD) in 
order to provide the maintenance costs for the park, landscape trail, common 
landscaping, street maintenance, and other improvements in accordance with 
existing city policies.

N. Developer shall also comply with conditions established in Resolution No 2021-
01.

Subdivider further agrees to pay at the time of filing of the Improvement Security hereinafter 
required by Paragraph 12 of this Agreement an amount to cover the City's costs of engineering and 
inspection as may be set by the City's Municipal Code.

The estimated costs of all said improvements to be completed, including a ten percent (10%) 
contingency, is $625,352, as shown on Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

2. Inspection of Work.
The City shall inspect all work to be done and performed by the Subdivider and Subdivider agrees 
that all work, improvements and materials to be done and supplied and performed shall be done, 
supplied and performed in strict accordance with the approved construction plans of said work on file 
in the Office of the City Engineer of the City, and in accordance with the standard specifications of the 
City, which said plans and specifications and standards are hereby referred to and incorporated by 
reference in this Agreement.  All of said work and improvements and materials shall be done, 
performed, and installed to the satisfaction of the City Engineer of the City.  Subdivider agrees to pay 
all fees for such inspection as required by the current City Code and fee resolutions and agrees to pay 
an additional three percent (3%) for reinspection required by reason of defective work, improvements 
and/or materials. Defective work shall be made good, and unsuitable materials may be rejected, 
notwithstanding the fact that such defective work and unsuitable materials may have been previously 
overlooked or approved by the City Engineer or Public Works Director.  Any damage to the sewer 
system, water system, storm drainage facilities, concrete work, street paving, or any other 
improvements that occurs after installation shall be made good to the satisfaction of the City by 
Subdivider before final acceptance of completed work by the City Council.  Defective work appearing 
after final acceptance shall be repaired/replaced under the maintenance provision herein.

As part of the inspection process, Subdivider shall retain, at its sole cost and expense, a 
materials testing company to perform any testing or retesting of the work as required by the City 
Engineer or Public Works Director.  The materials testing firm must be approved by the City before 
any testing or retesting begins.  



                               

4

City shall schedule a preliminary final inspection and a deficiency list shall be compiled and 
submitted to the Subdivider for correction. Upon completion of all corrections or additional work as 
outlined by the deficiency list, the Subdivider shall certify, in writing, that all corrections have been 
completed and request a final inspection. 

The completion of corrections indicated by the deficiency list shall not relieve the Subdivider 
from the responsibility of correcting any deficiency not shown on the deficiency list that may be 
subsequently discovered. Should the City require payment of additional engineering and inspection 
fees and costs for improvements constructed after the stated date of completion, the Subdivider must 
pay said additional fees and costs prior to acceptance by the City.

3. Final Acceptance.  Upon completion of all said work and improvements and 
acceptance thereof by City, or upon the acceptance by City of the required Improvement Security 
referred to in Paragraph 12 hereof, the City agrees to approve the final subdivision map, and to 
accept on behalf of the public all lands, rights-of-way and easements offered for dedication in 
accordance with the conditions herein set forth.  A complete set of "as built" reproducible plans shall 
be filed with the City upon completion of the work and improvements.

4. Completion of Said Work of Improvements. Subdivider agrees to complete the 
work and improvements as herein set forth within a period of twenty-four (24) months from the date of 
this Agreement.  When a delay occurs due to unforeseen causes beyond the control and without the 
fault or negligence of the Subdivider, the time of completion may be extended for a period justified by 
the effect of such delay on the completion of the work.  The Subdivider shall file a written request for a 
time extension with the Director of Public Works prior to the above noted date, who shall ascertain the 
facts and determine the extent of justifiable delays, if any.  The Director of Public Works shall give the 
Subdivider written notice of his determination in writing, which shall be final and conclusive.  In the 
event an extension is granted to the time within which all work is to be completed on this subdivision, 
the Subdivider hereby agrees that he will comply with all the applicable improvement standards in 
effect at the time of said extension.

Failure of Subdivider to timely complete the improvements shall constitute a material 
breach of this Agreement. In such event, the Improvement Security, hereinafter described, shall 
thereupon immediately be paid to City, and City shall have permission to go upon the property and 
complete all street work and public improvements, including installation or reinstallation, as City 
deems necessary, of all utility facilities, streets, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, sewer, water, drainage and 
other public improvements, which were not properly or fully completed or installed by Subdivider.

5. Maintenance of Improvements Following Acceptance.  Upon satisfactory 
completion of all improvements required in accordance with this agreement and acceptance thereof 
by the City, the City agrees to accept for maintenance the improvements to be constructed in 
accordance with this Agreement; provided, however, within fifteen (15) days after written notice from 
the City, the Subdivider agrees to remedy any defects in the improvements arising from faulty or 
defective construction of said improvements occurring within twelve (12) months after acceptance 
thereof.

6. Safety.  Subdivider shall perform all work in accordance with the applicable sections of 
Title 3 of the California Administrative Code (CAL OSHA), and the Manual of Traffic Controls, Warning 
Signs, Lights, and Devices for Use in Performance of Work Upon Highways, published by California 
Department of Transportation, and available at the City Engineer's Office.  Provisions shall be made 
by Subdivider for protection of the traveling public on all public roads affected by the improvements.



                               

5

Barricades and related facilities shall be placed in such number and in such locations as 
required for public safety, and at night they shall be equipped with flashing yellow lights.  City reserves 
the right to require and Subdivider shall promptly install or place additional barricades or other 
facilities to assure public safety if City shall deem the same to be necessary or desirable for public 
safety.  Subdivider is responsible for all liability which may arise out of work herein permitted whether 
or not on public property, and shall indemnify, defend and hold City harmless from any and all claims, 
damages, or causes of action arising therefrom or related thereto.

7. Insurance and Indemnity.    The Subdivider shall take and assume all responsibility 
for the construction of the improvements and the safety of operation in connection therewith.  The 
Subdivider shall bear all losses and damages directly or indirectly resulting to the City, its officers, 
agents, and employees or to others on account of the construction of the improvements, unforeseen 
difficulties, accidents, or any other causes whatsoever.

The Subdivider shall assume the defense of and indemnify and save harmless the City, its 
officers, agents, and employees from all claims, loss, damage, injury and liability of every kind, nature, 
and description, directly or indirectly arising from the construction of the improvements.

Subdivider further agrees that before commencing any work pursuant to this agreement, 
Subdivider will obtain, and at all times prior to final acceptance of all improvements hereunder, and 
will keep in full force and effect, insurance coverage in such limits and amounts, and covering such 
risks as shall be acceptable to the City.  In the event that no other requirement is made known to 
Subdivider, the minimum coverage and limits shall be as follows:

             COVERAGE                                                                            LIMITS

Workers Compensation Statutory

Comprehensive General Liability, $2,000,000 per occurrence
including or separately insuring
liability assumed by contract

     Bodily Injury                                              $   500,000 per person
                                                                                 $1,000,000 per occurrence
     
     Property Damage                                              $ 250,000 per occurrence

Subdivider shall, prior to commencement of construction work, furnish to City a certificate of 
insurance, which shall provide that the above insurance shall not be cancelled without 30 days prior 
written notice to City, and which shall also show the City, its officers and employees, as additional 
named insureds (except as to worker's compensation coverage).

8. Compliance with Codes.  Subdivider shall comply with any and all ordinances and 
resolutions or other codes of the City applicable to the proposed subdivision and the work to be done 
by Subdivider under the terms of this Agreement.

9. Notice of Commencement of Work.  The Subdivider shall give the City's Engineer 
written notice of not less than two working days in advance of the actual date on which work is to be 
started.  Failure on the part of the contractor to notify the City's Engineer may cause delay for which 



                               

6

the Subdivider shall be solely responsible.

Whenever the Subdivider varies the period which work is carried on each day, he shall give 
due notice to the City's Engineer so that proper inspection may be provided.  Any work done in the 
absence of the City's Engineer or his duly authorized inspectors may be subject to rejection.

The inspection of work shall not relieve the Subdivider of any of his obligations to fulfill this 
Agreement as prescribed, and the Subdivider agrees that defective work shall be made good, and 
unsuitable materials may be rejected, notwithstanding the fact that such defective work and unsuitable 
materials have been previously overlooked by the City's Engineer or Inspector and accepted.

Any damage to sewer systems, concrete work or street paving or other works of 
improvements, as required by this agreement, that occurs after installation and prior to the 
acceptance thereof by the City shall be made good by the Subdivider, to the satisfaction of the City's 
Engineer, before release of the Improvement Security guaranteeing said work.

10. Dust Control.  The Subdivider shall be responsible for the complete control of 
dust during the construction of the subdivision improvements and will take the following measures to 
reduce dust generation during the development and construction of the subdivision:

A. Submit for approval by the Director of Public Works a program for the control of 
dust, which shall include but not be limited to, a watering schedule (frequency  
and time of day), use of dust control emulsions, and/or other measures 
necessary for the control of dust.

B. Provide equipment and manpower for watering of all exposed or disturbed soil 
surfaces including on weekends and holidays.

C. Sweep construction area and adjacent streets of all mud and dust daily at the 
end of the work day.

D. The developer shall deposit with the City $5,000 which may be used by the 
City for dust control measures on this development should the developer fail to 
adequately control dust.  In case the City incurs cost for dust control in excess 
of the above amount, the developer shall reimburse the City for the total cost of 
dust control incurred by the City.  Upon acceptance by the City of the 
subdivision improvements, the above amount, less any amount expended by 
the City for dust control, shall be returned to the Developer.

11. Repair by City of any Work Damaged or Destroyed by City.  In the event that the 
City should damage, destroy or tear up any of the paving or other subdivision improvements to be 
installed by the Subdivider under the terms of this agreement in order to install sewer or water service 
connections or any other services to said subdivision that could have been installed prior to the 
installation of said paving or other subdivision improvements, the City agrees to repair and replace 
such destroyed paving or other subdivision improvements at its own cost and expense.

12. Improvement Security.  Upon execution of this agreement, the Subdivider shall obtain 
and file with the City good and sufficient Improvement Security in favor of the City and in the form 
approved by City securing the faithful performance by Subdivider of the work of improvement required 
by the provisions of this agreement in the sum of $625,352



                               

7

Said Improvement Security shall be an Improvement Security as defined and described in the 
Government Code of the State of California Section 66499, et. seq. and it is agreed that the City 
Council of the City has determined that the amount of said Improvement Security has been fixed at 
One Hundred Percent (100%) of the total estimated cost of said improvements as hereinabove set 
forth in Paragraph 1, conditioned upon the Subdivider's faithful performance of this agreement, and an 
additional amount of fifty percent (50%) of the total estimated cost of said improvement as 
hereinabove set forth in Paragraph 1, securing payment to the contractor, his subcontractors and to 
persons furnishing labor, materials, or equipment to them for the improvement.

A. Release of Improvement Security given for faithful performance of this 
agreement:

The Subdivider may request the City to inspect the work as it progresses.  If the 
work performed is inspected and found to be constructed in conformity with the 
requirements of the City, a partial release of the Improvement Security for 
faithful performance of this agreement shall be made in the sum in the same 
ratio of the total deposit as the work inspected bears to the total work to be 
done.  No release of Improvement Security for faithful performance of this 
agreement in excess of eighty-five percent (85%) of the total amount of                   
$625,352 shall be made until all the work has been completed and accepted.

The determination of the City as to the amount of work done and the amount of 
Improvement Security to be released shall be final and conclusive.

When the work of improvement is accepted, not less than ten (10%) percent of
the total improvements costs to guarantee the faithful performance of the 
provisions of this agreement relating to defective or faulty construction for a 
period of one year following completion and acceptance thereof.  The total 
improvement costs for this project is $625,352

B. Release of Improvement Security securing the payment of contractors, 
subcontractors and to persons furnishing labor, materials, or equipment:

The Subdivider may certify to the City that any phase of the work required by 
terms of this agreement as set forth in Paragraph 1 of this agreement has been 
completed.  Upon certification by City's Engineer that such phase of said work 
has been completed and inspected by City, the portion of said Improvement 
Security furnished by Subdivider for the purpose of securing the payment of the 
contractor, his subcontractors and persons furnishing labor, materials, or 
equipment for said phase or phases of said work shall be released six (6) 
months after the completion and acceptance of said work in an amount 
determined by the City Engineer, less an amount equal to all claims upon which 
an action has been filed and notice given in writing to the City Council of the 
City, and if no actions are filed such portion of said Improvement Security for 
said phase of said work shall be released in full.

Such release shall not apply to any required guarantee and warranty period nor 
to the amount of security deemed necessary by the City in such guarantee and 
warranty period nor to costs and reasonable expenses and fees, including 
reasonable attorney's fees.



                               

8

13. Title Held Under Holding Agreement.  Where title to the subdivided property is held 
by the record owner thereof under a holding agreement, this agreement and the bond given pursuant 
thereto may be executed by the real party or parties in interest.

14. Extension of time Not to Release Improvement Securities.  Any extension of time 
hereunder shall not operate to release the surety on any Improvement Security given pursuant to this 
agreement and the said surety shall waive the provisions of Section 2819 of the Civil Code of the 
State of California.

15. Time. Time is of the essence of this agreement, and the same shall bind and inure to 
the benefit of the parties hereto, their successors and assigns.

16. Attorney's Fees.  In the event legal action is taken by the City to enforce the terms of 
this agreement, or remedy the breach thereof, or in any action against the surety, the court shall 
award to the City a sum representing its reasonable attorney's fees.

17. Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of all 
successors, assigns, heirs, and representatives of the parties hereto.

18. Entire Agreement; Governing Law. This Agreement, together with the documents 
incorporated herein by reference and any exhibits referenced herein and attached hereto, states the 
entire agreement among the parties regarding the subject matters set forth in this Agreement, and 
supersedes all prior discussions, agreements, negotiations or understandings. This Agreement shall 
be construed and governed by the laws of the State of California and the parties agree that this 
Agreement is entered into and to be performed in the County of Kings.

19. Severability. The provisions of this Agreement are severable. The invalidity, or 
unenforceability of any provision(s) in this Agreement shall not affect the other provisions of this 
Agreement.

20. Authorized Representative. Each signatory to this Agreement on behalf of an entity 
other than an individual, represents and warrants that he or she is the duly authorized representative 
of the party for whom the signatory executes this Agreement and may bind such entity to this 
Agreement.



                               

9

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this agreement or caused the same to be 
executed by the officer thereunto duly authorized, on the day and year first written above.

                      
CITY OF LEMOORE

                                                                         By______________________________
    NATHAN OLSON City Manager

ATTEST:

______________________________
Marisa Avalos, City Clerk

Energy Homes, Inc. dba G.J. Gardner Homes:

By_____________________________
                       



                               

10

EXHIBIT "A"

ENGINEERING ESTIMATE
Prepared for Energy Homes Inc. dba G.J. Gardner Homes

Fairway Courtyards

Tract No. 820

Concrete $   58,000          

Streets $ 278,000           

Water $   40,000

Street Lights $   34,000

Landscaping $   55,974

Walls & Fencing $ 102,528
                   
                        Contingency (10%) $   56,850

      
   TOTAL $ 625,352











“In God We Trust”

  
     City of

LEMOORE
CALIFORNIA

711 West Cinnamon Drive Lemoore, California 93245 (559) 924-6744

Staff Report

Item No: 3-7
         

To: Lemoore City Council
From Nathan Olson, City Manager
Date: April 8, 20222 Meeting Date: April 19, 2022
Subject: Budget Amendment – Purchase of APNs: 024-080-074 (8.60 Acres) and 

APN 024-080-076 (10.55 Acres)

Strategic Initiative: 
Safe & Vibrant Community Growing & Dynamic Economy 

Fiscally Sound Government Operational Excellence

Community & Neighborhood Livability Not Applicable 

Proposed Motion:
Approve the budget amendment in the amount of $164,645.20, for the purchase of 19.15
Acres from the Redevelopment Agency (RDA).

Subject/Discussion:
The Oversight Board of Kings County approved the Lemoore Successor Agency to 
purchase RDA properties – Vacant Lot 1, APN 024-080-074, comprised of approximately 
8.60 acres of unimproved open land, and Vacant Lot 2, APN 024-080-076, comprised of 
approximately 10.55 acres of unimproved open land. A total of 19.15 acres located directly 
South of the Lemoore BMX Raceway (1800 Hwy 41).

These properties are currently being leased with an option to purchase by People’s 
Properties, LLC.

Financial Consideration(s):
Per the City’s Long Range Property Management Plan APN: 024-080-074, 8.60 acres 
estimated current value is $61,791 and APN: 024-080-076, 10.55 acres estimated current 
value is $99,961. A total of $161,752. Additional costs include escrow and title fees. The 
budget amendment will be to move funds from the general fund reserve to 4213-4800, 
however the return on investment is just over 2 years. This property is currently under 
lease for $2,000 per acre, and an option to purchase for an amount of $574,000.



“In God We Trust”

Alternatives or Pros/Cons:
Pros:

Economic Development opportunities. 
Additional revenue to the general fund.

Cons:
None noted.

Commission/Board Recommendation:
None.

Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends City Council approval of the budget amendment for $164,645.20, for 
the purchase of 19.15 acres from the Redevelopment Agency.

Attachments: Review: Date:
Resolution: Asst. City Manager 04/11/2022
Ordinance: City Attorney 04/15/2022
Map City Clerk 04/15/2022
Contract City Manager
Other Finance 04/12/2022
List: Oversight Board Resolution
       Long Range Property Management Plan
       Budget Amendment



RESOLUTION NO. OB21005          

A RESOLUTION OF THE OVERSIGHT BOARD OF FORMER REDEVELOPMENT 
AGENCIES IN KINGS COUNTY APPROVING THE SALE OF PROPERTY 024-080-074 AND 

024-080-076 AS AUTHORIZED IN THE LEMOORE SUCCESSOR AGENCY
LONG RANGE PROPERTY MANAGEMENT PLAN

WHEREAS, AB X1 26 (“AB 26”) was passed by the California State Legislature on June 15, 2011, 
signed by the Governor on June 28, 2011, and on February 1, 2012 redevelopment agencies in 
the state of California were dissolved; and

WHEREAS, AB 1484 was subsequently passed by the California State Legislature and signed
into law by the Governor on June 27, 2012 modifying the provisions of AB 26; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to AB 1484, Health and Safety Code (HSC) sections 34177(e) and 
34181(a) were suspended forbidding successor agencies from disposing of any property until 
they receive a Finding of Completion and receive approval of a Long Range Property 
Management Plan (LRPMP) from the California Department of Finance (DOF); and

WHEREAS, on June 7, 2013, the DOF issued its Finding of Completion to the Lemoore Successor 
Agency; and

WHEREAS, on March 12, 2014, the Lemoore Successor Agency received notification from the 
DOF that its LRPMP was approved and that pursuant to HSC section 34191.3, the approved 
LRPMP shall govern and supersede all other provisions relating to the disposition and use of all 
real property assets of the former redevelopment agency; and

WHEREAS, the City of Lemoore Successor Agency LRPMP indicates that the parcels identified 
as APN 024-080-074 and APN 024-080-076 were purchased by the former redevelopment 
agency for the purpose of economic development; and 

WHEREAS, the LRPMP dictates that the permissible use of the property is “Sale of Property”; 
and

WHEREAS, the proceeds from the sale are to be “To be distributed as property tax to taxing 
entities”; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Oversight Board hereby resolves as follows:  

SECTION 1. The recitals above are true and correct and are incorporated into this 
Resolution.  

SECTION 2.  The Lemoore Successor Agency agrees to purchase 024-080-074 AND 024-
080-076 for an amount not to exceed the fair market value as determined in an appraisal.

SECTION 3. HSC section 34191.5 (f) states that Oversight Board actions to implement 
the disposition of property pursuant to an approved LRPMP are final and shall not require review 
by the DOF.  

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by the Oversight Board at a regular meeting this 20th

day of January, 2021, by the following vote:



AYES:  Joe Neves, Bill Gundacker, Harold Nickoghosian, Jamie Dial, Richard Storti

NOES:  None

ABSENT: Sid Palmerin

ABSTAIN: None  

APPROVED:

____________________________________
Joe Neves, Chairperson

ATTEST:

____________________________________
Sarah Poots, Oversight Board Secretary

____________________________________
h Poooooooooooooooooooooooooooots Oversigh

____________________________________________________________ _____________
Jooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooeee eeeeeeeeeee Neves, Chairpers





AGREEMENT FOR PURCHASE AND 
SALE OF REAL PROPERTY

This AGREEMENT FOR PURCHASE AND SALE OF REAL PROPERTY 
(“Agreement”) is made and entered into this 31 day of March 2022, by and between, the
Successor Agency to the Lemoore Redevelopment Agency (hereinafter “Seller”), and the 
City of Lemoore (hereinafter “Buyer”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Seller is the successor agency to the Lemoore Redevelopment 
Agency, and as such, is the owner of certain real properties identified as: Vacant Lot 1, 
APN 024-080-074, comprised of approximately 8.60 acres of unimproved open land, and
Vacant Lot 2, APN 024-080-076, comprised of approximately 10.55 acres of unimproved 
open land, more particularly described on Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated 
herein (the “Properties”); and

WHEREAS, Buyer desires to purchase and Seller desires to sell the Properties to 
Buyer on the terms and conditions set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth herein and 
for such other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which is 
hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. AGREEMENT AND PROPERTIES. Seller agrees to sell and convey to
Buyer, and Buyer agrees to purchase from Seller, fee simple title to all of Seller’s right, 
title and interest in and to the Properties and all improvements thereon, if any, together 
with all rights, privileges and easements appurtenant to the Properties, whether or not 
recorded. (collectively “Real Property”)

2. PURCHASE PRICE. The purchase price (“Purchase Price”) for the 
Properties shall be One Hundred Sixty-One Thousand, Seven Hundred Fifty-Two dollars
($161,752.00).  The Purchase Price shall be due and payable on closing.

3. CONTINGENCIES. This transaction and the closing thereof are expressly 
contingent upon the following:

3.1 State-Mandated Approval for Transfer of Property. As required by 
law pursuant to ABX1 26, as amended by AB 1484, closing of the sale and purchase is 
contingent upon approval of the Successor Agency, ratification of that approval by the 
Successor Agency’s Oversight Board, and approval by the State of California Department 
of Finance.  If the state-mandated approvals cannot be obtained, Seller, or its successors 
or assigns, shall have no obligation or liability whatsoever to Buyer or its successors or 
assigns. 



















Date: Request By:

Requesting Department: 

TYPE OF BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUEST:

Appropriation Transfer within Budget Unit

All other appropriations (Attach Council approved Staff Report)

FROM:

Fund Budget Unit Account Current Budget Proposed
Increase/Decrease: Proposed New Budget

001 1010 Reserves (164,645.20)$                  (164,645.20)$                              

      

TO:

Fund Budget Unit Account Current Budget Proposed
Increase/Decrease: Proposed New Budget

001 4213 4800 -$                            164,645.20$                    164,645.20$                               

APPROVALS: 

4/11/2022 Nathan Olson

City Manager

CITY OF LEMOORE
BUDGET AMENDMENT FORM

Vacant Lot 2, APN 024-080-076

JUSTIFICATION FOR CHANGE/FUNDING SOURCE:

Purchase of 19.15 Acres from RDA

Vacant Lot 1, APN 024-080-074

Completed By:  Date:

Department Head: Date:

Date:City Manager:



“In God We Trust”

  
     City of

LEMOORE
CALIFORNIA

711 West Cinnamon Drive Lemoore, California 93245 (559) 924-6700 

Staff Report

Item No: 3-8
         

To: Lemoore City Council
From: Frank Rivera, Public Works Director
Date: March 22, 2022 Meeting Date: April 19, 2022
Subject: Notice of Completion – CIP 5313 – Bush Street Sewer Repair Project

Strategic Initiative: 
Safe & Vibrant Community Growing & Dynamic Economy 

Fiscally Sound Government Operational Excellence

Community & Neighborhood Livability Not Applicable 

Proposed Motion:
Approve the filing of the Notice of Completion for CIP 5313 – Bush Street Sewer Repair 
Project and authorize the City Manager, or designee, to sign document for recordation.

Subject/Discussion:
The City of Lemoore awarded the Bush Street Sewer Repair to JT2 INC. dba Todd 
Companies on December 6, 2021. 

The project consisted of repairing a wastewater pipe on Bush Street and 19th and connect 
a new 10” pipe to existing competent pipe. Todd Company completed this project and the 
final invoice will be released to the contractor following the recordation of the Notice of 
Completion, as long as no liens are filed against the contractor.

Financial Consideration(s):
The overall budget of this project was $90,000 and the total cost of the project was 
$72,443, coming in $17,557 under budget.

Alternatives or Pros/Cons:
Pro:



“In God We Trust”

Filing of the Notice of Completion will allow time for creditors to notify the City of 
unpaid bills and allow for the release of some of the bonds for the Contractor.

Con:
None noted

Commission/Board Recommendation:
Not applicable.

Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends that City Council approve the filing of the Notice of Completion for CIP 
5313 –Bush Street Sewer Repair Project and authorize the City Manager, or designee,
to sign document for recordation.

Attachments: Review: Date:
Resolution: Asst. City Manager 04/11/2022
Ordinance: City Attorney 04/15/2022
Map City Clerk 04/15/2022
Contract City Manager
Other Finance 04/12/2022
List: Notice of Completion



RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND
WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO:

City Clerk
City of Lemoore
711 W Cinnamon Drive
Lemoore, CA  93245

No Fee Per Government Code 6103

NOTICE OF COMPLETION

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, pursuant to Civil Code Section 9204, that the interest or 
estate stated below herein in the real property herein described is owned by the CITY OF 
LEMOORE and that the City Council of the City of Lemoore, 711 W Cinnamon Drive, Lemoore, 
California, entered into an Agreement on December 6, 2021 with JT2, Inc. dba Todd 
Companies, for the Bush Street Sewer Repair Project, at various locations in the City of 
Lemoore in Kings County, California 93245.  Such work has been completed and accepted by 
the City of Lemoore on the 16th day of February.

CITY OF LEMOORE

                                                                            Nathan Olson, City Manager
ATTEST:

Marisa Avalos, City Clerk

CERTIFICATE

STATE OF CALIFORNIA    )
COUNTY OF KINGS            )     ss.
CITY OF LEMOORE            )

I, Frank Rivera, am the Public Works Director of the City of Lemoore.  I have read the 
foregoing Notice of Completion and know the contents thereof, and I certify that the same is 
true of my knowledge except for those matters stated upon information and belief, and as to 
those matters, I believe them to be true and correct.  I certify under penalty of perjury that the 
foregoing is true and correct.

EXECUTED this day of , 2020 at Lemoore, California.

Frank Rivera
Public Works Director
City of Lemoore



PUBLIC AGENCY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

STATE OF CALIFORNIA  )
COUNTY OF KINGS         )     ss.
CITY OF LEMOORE         )

On before me, Marisa Avalos, City Clerk, 
personally appeared Nathan Olson, proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be 
the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that 
he executed the same in his authorized capacity, and that by his signature on the instrument, 
the person or the entity upon behalf of which the person acted, executed the instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct.

Marisa Avalos, City Clerk

PUBLIC AGENCY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

STATE OF CALIFORNIA  )
COUNTY OF KINGS         )  ss.
CITY OF LEMOORE         )

On before me, Marisa Avalos, City Clerk, 
personally appeared Frank Rivera, proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be 
the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that 
he executed the same in his authorized capacity, and that by his signature on the instrument, 
the person or the entity upon behalf of which the person acted, executed the instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct.

Marisa Avalos, City Clerk



Project Location

Project is located at the intersection of 19th Avenue and Bush Avenue in the City of Lemoore. 



“In God We Trust”

  
     City of

LEMOORE
CALIFORNIA

711 West Cinnamon Drive Lemoore, California 93245 (559) 924-6744 Fax (559) 924-9003

Staff Report

Item No: 3-9
         

To: Lemoore City Council
From: Frank Rivera, Public Works Director
Date: April 8, 2022 Meeting Date: April 19, 2022
Subject: Change Order for AdEdge for Electrical Work on City Wells

Strategic Initiative: 
Safe & Vibrant Community Growing & Dynamic Economy 

Fiscally Sound Government Operational Excellence

Community & Neighborhood Livability Not Applicable 

Proposed Motion:
Approve a change order from AdEdge for the hydrocarbon remediation project in the
amount of $108,672. Authorize the City Manager, or designee, to sign the change order. 

Subject/Discussion:
The City authorized an agreement with AdEdge Technologies for hydrocarbon 
remediation on November 16, 2021. The City received a change order for electrical work 
to be completed on wells within the city. The electrical work was not originally included in 
the contract with AdEdge and will locate the subpanels for hydrocarbon remediation from 
wells 7, 13, and 14 within the City of Lemoore. The electrical cabinets will be upgraded in 
all locations to protect the panels and to ensure longevity and effectiveness. 

Financial Consideration(s):
The project number is 052-4753. Funds for projects related to the well incident have yet 
to be determined. They may include insurance reimbursements, use of American 
Rescue Plan Act Funds (ARPA), and/or water revenue fees. 

Alternatives or Pros/Cons:
Alternative: Council could reject the change order and require City Staff to seek bids 
from other qualified contractors. Doing so would result in a delay to the project. 



“In God We Trust”

Commission/Board Recommendation:
N/A

Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends City Council approve the change order in the amount of $108,672, and
approve the City Manager, or designee, to execute any necessary documents.

Attachments: Review: Date:
Resolution: Asst. City Manager 04/11/2022
Ordinance: City Attorney 04/15/2022
Map City Clerk 04/15/2022
Contract City Manager
Other Finance 04/12/2022
List: Change Order



CO # CO #1

Change Order Prepared G.Gilles

2055 Boggs Road Phone: 678-730-6551 / 770-883-2280 Date 2/11/2022, Rev 03/10/22
Duluth, GA 30096 Fax:     678-835-0057
www.adedgetechnologies.com Email:  greg@adedgetechnologies.com Terms See below

Prices FOB Duluth, GA
To: Mr. Nathan Olson - City Manager /Michelle Speer 

City of Lemoore CA Delivery See below
711 Cinnamon Drive
Lemoore CA  93245 Phone # 770-883-2280
Tel: 559-924-6744 x703

Fax # 678-835-0057
Project:  Change Order No 1 (Rev1)

System Upgrades and Electrical Work Addition 

Site / Location: City of Lemoore CA - Station 7 Wells 13, 14, and 7
Reference # Sta 7 HC Remediation

Item Quantity Scope Description Unit Price Total

A Lot Electrical System Installation
Electrrical subcontract work to be performed by Telstar per Scope of work and quote
New Subpanels / Service, materials, labor for hydrocarbon remediation systems
Well 7, 13, and 14
See attached detailed line itemization by Telstar dated 1/11/22
Well 7 Scope of Work 24,753$          24,753$                          
Well 13 Scopt of Work 17,920$          17,920$                          
Well 14 Scope of Work 17,920$          17,920$                          
AdEdge G&A Overhead and Subcontractor management (15%) 9,143$            9,143$                            

B Upgrade Electrical Cabinets for Air Compressor Equipment 22,800$          22,800$                          
Cabinets for all three locations upgraded to NEMA 4 for outdoor use
Previuosly included NEMA 1 cabinets / ratings for small structure / covering
Consultation with supplier, the City (John Souza) and others recommends upgrade
Allows for long term protection of equipment with no concern for dust, inclement weather affects
Extends warranty

C Performance and Payment Bonding 16,136$          16,136$                          
Includes P&P bond for original contract amount + this CO#1 work scope

D Additional Insurance Adder as requested by City of Lemoore -$                No added cost
Commercial General Liability: $2M per occurrence and $4m aggregate
Auto Liability: $1M
WC: Statutory and Employer’s Liability for $1M

Subtotal $108,672
taxes to be added if applicable

 Total $108,672
E Appllicable documents

Attached Compressor Specs / Cut Sheets
Telstar Quotation to AdEdge dated 2/11/2022; to work directly with AdEdge

F Invoicing / Payment Terms
50% upon ordering materials
50% net 30 days upon invoice with completion of work at all three locations

Quoted by: __________________________________________            Date:         Rev 3/10/22

Authorized by: __________________________________________       Date: ___________________
                       Name / Title

Project Manager

Greg Gilles



“In God We Trust”

  
     City of

LEMOORE
CALIFORNIA

711 West Cinnamon Drive Lemoore, California 93245 (559) 924-6744

Staff Report

Item No: 3-10
         

To: Lemoore City Council
From: Frank Rivera, Public Works Director
Date: March 22, 2022 Meeting Date: April 19, 2022
Subject: Notice of Completion – CIP 5019 – 2021 Annual Road Maintenance 

Project

Strategic Initiative: 
Safe & Vibrant Community Growing & Dynamic Economy 

Fiscally Sound Government Operational Excellence

Community & Neighborhood Livability Not Applicable 

Proposed Motion:
Approve the filing of the Notice of Completion for CIP 5019 –City of Lemoore 2021 Annual 
Road Maintenance Project and authorize the City Manager, or designee, to sign 
document for recordation.

Subject/Discussion:
The City of Lemoore awarded the 2021 Annual Streets Maintenance Project to VSS 
International Inc. on October 5, 2021. 

The project consisted of slurry and repairing various streets within the City of Lemoore. 
Details on the streets included can be found in the attachment provided. VSS International 
Inc. completed this project and is requesting a closeout of the project.

Financial Consideration(s):
The overall budget for the project was $540,000 and the overall cost of the project was
$392,460 coming in approximately $147,540 under budget.

Alternatives or Pros/Cons:
Pros:



“In God We Trust”

Filing of the Notice of Completion will allow time for creditors to notify the City of 
unpaid bills and allow for the release of some of the bonds for the Contractor.

Con:
None noted.

Commission/Board Recommendation:
Not applicable.

Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends that City Council approve the filing of the Notice of Completion for CIP 
5019 –2021 Annual Road Maintenance Project and authorize the City Manager, or
designee, to sign document for recordation.

Attachments: Review: Date:
Resolution: Asst. City Manager 04/11/2022
Ordinance: City Attorney 04/15/2022
Map City Clerk 04/15/2022
Contract City Manager
Other Finance 04/12/2022
List: Notice of Completion

Street Diagram



RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND
WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO:

City Clerk
City of Lemoore
711 W Cinnamon Drive
Lemoore, CA  93245

No Fee Per Government Code 6103

NOTICE OF COMPLETION

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, pursuant to Civil Code Section 9204, that the interest or 
estate stated below herein in the real property herein described is owned by the CITY OF 
LEMOORE and that the City Council of the City of Lemoore, 711 W Cinnamon Drive, Lemoore, 
California, entered into an Agreement on October 5, 2021 with VSS International, INC., for the 
CITY OF LEMOORE 2021 ANNUAL ROAD MAINTENANCE PROJECT, at various locations
in the City of Lemoore in Kings County, California 93245.  Such work has been completed and 
accepted by the City of Lemoore on the 29th day of November.

CITY OF LEMOORE

                                                                            Nathan Olson, City Manager
ATTEST:

Marisa Avalos, City Clerk

CERTIFICATE

STATE OF CALIFORNIA    )
COUNTY OF KINGS            )     ss.
CITY OF LEMOORE            )

I, Frank Rivera, am the Public Works Director of the City of Lemoore.  I have read the 
foregoing Notice of Completion and know the contents thereof, and I certify that the same is 
true of my knowledge except for those matters stated upon information and belief, and as to 
those matters, I believe them to be true and correct.  I certify under penalty of perjury that the 
foregoing is true and correct.

EXECUTED this day of , 2020 at Lemoore, California.

Frank Rivera
Public Works Director
City of Lemoore



PUBLIC AGENCY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

STATE OF CALIFORNIA  )
COUNTY OF KINGS         )     ss.
CITY OF LEMOORE         )

On before me, Marisa Avalos, City Clerk, 
personally appeared Nathan Olson, proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be 
the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that 
he executed the same in his authorized capacity, and that by his signature on the instrument, 
the person or the entity upon behalf of which the person acted, executed the instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct.

Marisa Avalos, City Clerk

PUBLIC AGENCY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

STATE OF CALIFORNIA  )
COUNTY OF KINGS         )  ss.
CITY OF LEMOORE         )

On before me, Marisa Avalos, City Clerk, 
personally appeared Frank Rivera, proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be 
the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that 
he executed the same in his authorized capacity, and that by his signature on the instrument, 
the person or the entity upon behalf of which the person acted, executed the instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct.

Marisa Avalos, City Clerk



88



89



“In God We Trust”

  
     City of

LEMOORE
CALIFORNIA

711 West Cinnamon Drive Lemoore, California 93245 (559) 924-6744

Staff Report

Item No: 5-1
         

To: Lemoore City Council
From Nathan Olson, City Manager
Date: April 8, 2022 Meeting Date: April 19, 2022
Subject: APRA Ad Hoc Committee Recommendation to City Council

Strategic Initiative: 
Safe & Vibrant Community Growing & Dynamic Economy 

Fiscally Sound Government Operational Excellence

Community & Neighborhood Livability Not Applicable 

Proposed Motion:
Approve the recommendation of the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Ad Hoc 
Committee regarding the remaining ARPA funds distributions.

Subject/Discussion:
The City of Lemoore has been allocated a total of $6,393,188 in ARPA funds. Funds have 
been committed for Premium Pay, Lemoore Volunteer Fire Department Association and 
Infrastructure projects. The remaining balance is $1.39 million.

Consensus was received by City Council to create an Ad Hoc Committee to assist with 
making recommendations to City Council regarding the ARPA funds distributions. 
Appointments to the Ad Hoc Committee were made on January 18, 2022. The committee 
met on March 8, 2022.

It is the recommendation of the committee to utilize the remaining $1.39 million in ARPA 
funds for Tyler Technologies, the City’s new Enterprise Resource Planning software. 

Financial Consideration(s):
The committee discussed the remaining $1.39 million in ARPA funds distributions and is 
recommending the funds be used toward the City’s contractual agreement with Tyler 
Technologies. The current agreement consists of a five (5) year term. The total five-year
contract is $1,647,140.



“In God We Trust”

Alternatives or Pros/Cons:
Pros:

Members of the community were able to participate and assist with making 
recommendations to Council regarding ARPA funds.

Cons:
None noted.

Council can decide not to move forward with the recommendation of the Ad Hoc 
committee and discuss other options.

Commission/Board Recommendation:
None.

Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends City Council approval of the recommendation of the ARPA Ad Hoc 
Committee regarding the remaining ARPA funds distributions.

Attachments: Review: Date:
Resolution: Asst. City Manager 04/11/2022
Ordinance: City Attorney 04/15/2022
Map City Clerk 04/15/2022
Contract City Manager
Other Finance 04/12/2022
List: 



  
City of

LEMOORE
CALIFORNIA

711 West Cinnamon Drive Lemoore, California 93245 (559) 924-6744

Staff Report
         

To: Lemoore City Council
From: Marisa Avalos, City Clerk
Date: April 11, 2022 Meeting Date: April 19, 2022
Subject: Activity Update
Strategic 
Initiative:

Safe & Vibrant Community
Fiscally Sound Government
Community & Neighborhood       

L Livability

Growing & Dynamic Economy
Operational Excellence
Not Applicable 

Reports

Warrant Register – FY 21/22 April 1, 2022
Warrant Register – FY 21/22 April 8, 2022
Warrant Register – FY 21/22 April 15, 2022








































































































































































